COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

COMBINED

FULL-TIME

AND

PART-TIME

BETWEEN:

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION ON BEHALF OF ITS LOCAL 444

- and -

THE KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL

DURATION: APRIL 1, 2006 TO MARCH 31, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
ARTICLE 1 -	Purpose	1
ARTICLE 2 -	Definitions	1
ARTICLE 3 -	No Discrimination Or Harassment	1
ARTICLE 4 -	No Strike/No Lockout	2
ARTICLE 5 -	Union Security	2
ARTICLE 6 -	Representation and Committees	2
6.01 6.02 6.03 6.03(d 6.04(a 6.04(b 6.05 6.06	Professional Responsibility Negotiating Committee	3 3 3 3 4 4 4
ARTICLE 7 -	Joint Health and Safety Committee	5
ARTICLE 8 -	Grievance and Arbitration Procedure	8
ARTICLE 9 -	Letters of Reprimand and Access to Files	12
ARTICLE 10	- Seniority & Service	12
10.01 10.02 10.03 10.04 10.05 10.06 10.07 10.08	Retention and Accumulation of Seniority on Transfer Outside Bargaining UnitLoss of Service and Seniority	
ARTICLE 11	- Layoff and Recall	16
ARTICLE 12	- Technological Change	23
ARTICLE 13	- Job Posting, Promotion and Transfer	23

		<u>PAGE</u>
ARTICLE 14 - L	eaves of Absence	25
14.01	Personal Leave	25
14.02	Union Business Leave	25
14.03	Bereavement Leave	26
14.04	Jury and Witness Duty	27
14.05(a)	Pregnancy Leave	
14.05(b)	Parental Leave	
14.06	Education Leave	30
14.07	Pre-Paid Leave	30
14.08	Professional College Leave	30
14.09	Military Leave	
ARTICLE 15 - S	ick Leave and Long-Term Disability	31
ARTICLE 16 - H	ours of Work and Overtime	32
16.01	Work Week and Work Day	32
16.02	Rest Periods	33
16.03	Overtime Definition	
16.04	Overtime/Call Back Accumulation	
16.05	Missed Meal Breaks	33
	remium Payments and Transportation/Meal Allowance	
17.01	Standby	
17.02	Call Back	
17.03	Shift Premium	
17.04	Weekend Premium	
17.05	Meal Allowance	
17.06	Transportation Allowance	
17.07	Responsibility Pay	
17.08	Time Off Between Shifts	
17.09	Change of Schedule	
17.10	No Pyramiding	37
ARTICLE 18 - P	aid Holidays	37
ARTICLE 19 - V	acations	38
ARTICLE 20 - H	ealth and Welfare Benefits	40
20.01(a)	Semi-private Hospital Insurance	
20.01(b)	Extended Health Care	
20.01(c)	Dental	
20.01(d)	Group Life Insurance	
20.01(e)	Same Sex Partner Coverage	
20.02	Change of Carrier	
20.03	Pension	42

		<u>PAGE</u>
20.04 20.05 20.06 20.07 20.08 20.09 20.10	Divisible Surplus Part-Time Benefits Benefits on Layoff Benefits on Sick Leave Benefits for Early Retirees Benefits Information Benefits Age 65 and Older	42 42 42 42
ARTICLE 21 -	Modified Work	43
ARTICLE 22 -	Contracting Out	43
ARTICLE 23 -	Work of the Bargaining Unit	44
ARTICLE 24 -	Continuing Education	44
ARTICLE 25 -	Compensation	44
ARTICLE 26 -	Superior Benefits	46
ARTICLE 27 -	Multi-Site Issues	47
ARTICLE 28 -	Job Registry	47
ARTICLE 29 -	Model Scheduling Agreements and Pre-Paid Leave	48
29.01 29.02 29.03 29.04	Extended Tours Innovative/Flexible Scheduling Job Sharing Arrangements Pre-Paid Leave	51 52
ARTICLE 30 -	- Emergency Situations – Local Consultation	56
ARTICLE 31 -	- Cost of Printing	56
ARTICLE 32 -	Duration and Renewal	57
Letter of Unde	rstanding – Joint Central Committee on Health & Safety	59
Letter of Unde	rstanding – Safety Engineered Sharps	60
Letter of Unde	rstanding – OPSEU Joint Trusteed Benefit Fund	58
Letter of Unde	rstanding – Part-time Voluntary Benefits	62
Letter of Unde	rstanding – Integration for the Delivery of Health Services	63
	derstanding – Full-time, Regular Part-time, Casual Part-time and	66

APPENDIX "I" – Salary Grid	67 PAGE
APPENDIX "II" – Local Provisions	72
ARTICLE A – SCOPE AND RECOGNITION	72
ARTICLE B – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	72
ARTICLE C – REPRESENTATION AND COMMITTEES	73
ARTICLE D – LEAVES OF ABSENCE	74
ARTICLE E – SICK LEAVE AND LONG-TERM DISABILITY (FULL TIME)	75
ARTICLE F – HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME (FULL TIME & PART TIME)	75
ARTICLE G – PREMIUM PAYMENTS AND TRANSPORTATION/MEAL ALLOWANCE.	78
ARTICLE H – PAID HOLIDAYS (FULL TIME & PART TIME)	78
ARTICLE I – VACATION	80
ARTICLE J – HEALTH & WELFARE BENEFITS (FULL TIME ONLY)	83
ARTICLE K – MISCELLANEOUS	83
ARTICLE L - COMPENSATION	84
ARTICLE M – PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION	84
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING RE: EDUCATION BONUS	85
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING RE: MULTI SITE ISSUES	86
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING RE: TEMPORARY FULL TIME	87
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING RE: PART TIME MASTER SCHEDULES	88
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING RE: SCHEDULING COMMITTEE	89

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE

1.01 The general purpose of this Agreement is to establish and maintain collective bargaining relations between the Hospital and the employees covered by this Agreement; to provide for on-going means of communication between the Union and the Hospital and the prompt disposition of grievances and the final settlement of disputes and to establish and maintain mutually satisfactory salaries, hours of work and other conditions of employment in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

It is recognized that employees wish to work together with the Hospital to secure the best possible care and health protection for patients.

ARTICLE 2 - DEFINITIONS

(The following clause will appear in all collective agreements replacing any provision related to Gender that existed in the Hospital's expiring collective agreement:)

- 2.01 Whenever the feminine pronoun is used in this Agreement, it includes the masculine pronoun and vice versa where the context so requires. Where the singular is used, it may also be deemed to mean plural and vice versa.
- (NOTE: Any other provision(s) related to central definitions that existed in the expiring Collective Agreement will be continued and numbered in sequence as provisions of this Article.)
- (NOTE: Any other provision(s) related to local definitions that existed in the expiring Collective Agreement will be continued in the Local Provisions Appendix.)

ARTICLE 3 - NO DISCRIMINATION OR HARASSMENT

- 3.01 The Hospital and the Union agree that there will be no discrimination, interference, intimidation, restriction or coercion exercised or practised by any of their representatives with respect to any employee because of his membership or non-membership in the Union or activity or lack of activity on behalf of the Union or by reason of exercising his rights under the Collective Agreement.
- 3.02 It is agreed that there will be no discrimination or harassment by either party or by any of the employees covered by this Agreement on the basis of race, ancestry, place of origin, creed, colour, ethnic origin, citizenship, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, record of offences, same-sex partnership status, family status or disability or any other factor which is not pertinent to the employment relationship.
- 3.03 Every employee who is covered by this agreement has a right to freedom from harassment in the workplace in accordance with the Ontario Human Rights Code.
- The Hospital and the Union recognize their joint duty to accommodate employees in accordance with the provisions of the Ontario Human Rights Code.

ARTICLE 4 - NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT

(The following clause will appear in all collective agreements replacing any provision related to No Strike/No Lockout that existed in the Hospital's expiring collective agreement:)

4.01 The Union agrees there shall be no strikes and the Hospital agrees there shall be no lockouts so long as this Agreement continues to operate. The terms "strike" and "lockout" shall bear the meaning given them in the Ontario Labour Relations Act.

ARTICLE 5 - UNION SECURITY (Dues Deduction)

(The following clause will appear in all collective agreements replacing any provision related to dues deduction that existed in the Hospital's expiring collective agreement:)

The Hospital will deduct from each employee in the bargaining unit an amount equal to the regular monthly union dues designated by the Union. The amount of regular monthly dues shall be as certified to the Hospital by the Treasurer of the Union from time to time. The amounts so deducted shall be remitted by the Hospital to the Union's Director of Finance no later than the 15th of the month following the month in which such deductions were made. In remitting such dues, the Hospital shall provide a list of the employees from whom deductions were made, including their job title and status (i.e., full-time, regular part-time, casual, or on leave of absence greater than thirty (30) days. A copy of this list will be forwarded to the Local Union. In consideration of the deducting and forwarding of union dues by the Hospital, the Union agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Hospital against any claims or liabilities arising or resulting from the operation of this Article.

ARTICLE 6 - REPRESENTATION AND COMMITTEES

6.01 <u>Union Stewards</u>

The Hospital agrees to recognize union stewards to be elected or appointed from amongst employees in the bargaining unit for the purpose of handling grievances as provided under this Collective Agreement.

Union stewards have their regular duties and responsibilities to perform for the Hospital and shall not leave their regular duties without first obtaining permission from their immediate supervisor. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld. If, in the performance of his grievance duties, a union steward is required to enter an area within the Hospital in which he is not ordinarily employed, he shall report his presence to the supervisor in the area immediately upon entering it. When resuming his regular duties and responsibilities, such steward shall again report to his immediate supervisor. A union steward shall suffer no loss of earnings for time spent in performing the above duties during his regular scheduled working hours.

The number of stewards, the areas which they represent, are to be determined locally and will be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

6.02 Grievance Committee

The Hospital will recognize a grievance committee comprising of members to be elected or appointed from the bargaining unit. One member shall be chairman. The purpose of the committee is to deal with grievances as set out in this Collective Agreement.

The number of employees on the grievance committee shall be determined locally and shall be set in the Local Provisions Appendix.

6.03 <u>Labour-Management Committee</u>

(a) The parties mutually agree that there are matters that would be beneficial if discussed at a Labour-Management Committee Meeting during the term of this Agreement. The Committee shall be comprised of an equal number of representatives of each party as mutually agreed and shall meet at a time and place mutually satisfactory. The Committee shall meet once every two (2) months, unless agreed otherwise. A request for a meeting hereunder will be made in writing at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date proposed and accompanied by an agenda of matters proposed to be discussed. Where a Hospital has two or more agreements with OPSEU, then a joint committee shall represent all units unless otherwise agreed. The Hospital undertakes to notify the Union in advance so far as practicable of any renovations or construction projects that will affect bargaining unit employees.

(b) Part Time Utilization Information

The Hospital agrees to supply the local union with part-time/full-time hours utilization by department, at the time specified for the posting of seniority lists. The Hospital further agrees to supply the Union, upon request, with other information that is reasonably related to utilization.

The parties may discuss part-time/full-time utilization through the Labour/Management Committee. The Hospital agrees to consider Union proposals for alternate distribution of hours between part-time and full-time. The Union recognizes the Hospital's right to determine such utilization.

(c) <u>Professional Responsibility</u>

(i) The Parties have a mutual interest in the provision of quality patient care. Therefore, where an employee, or group of employees, covered by this agreement and governed by an Ontario College under the Health Disciplines Act, have cause to believe that they are being asked to perform more work than is consistent with proper patient care it is agreed by the parties that such workload problems may be discussed by the local Labour Management Committee. Such complaint must be filed in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days of the alleged improper assignment.

If, after a thorough investigation, no consensus can be reached at Labour Management Committee the parties will meet with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/Chief Operating Officer (COO) within thirty (30) days of referral to present the issues. The CEO/COO will notify the Union of the decision in writing within fourteen (14) days.

(ii) Where the employer requires employees to maintain membership in a professional association, the requirement for such membership and for payment thereof, may be the topic of local negotiations, as described in the Memorandum of Conditions for Joint Bargaining.

6.04 (a) <u>Negotiating Committee</u>

The Hospital agrees to recognize a negotiating committee comprised of members to be elected or appointed from the bargaining unit. Where the Hospital participates in central bargaining, the purpose of the negotiating committee shall be to negotiate local issues as defined in this Collective Agreement. Where the Hospital does not participate in central bargaining, the purpose of the negotiating committee shall be to negotiate a renewal of this Collective Agreement. The Hospital agrees that the members of the negotiating committee shall suffer no loss of earnings for time spent during their regular scheduled working hours in attending negotiating meetings with the Hospital up to, and including, conciliation.

The number of members on the negotiating committee shall be determined locally and will be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

(b) Pay for Central Negotiating Committee

Union Negotiating Committee members up to a maximum of seven (7) shall be paid for time lost from their normal straight time working hours at their regular rate of pay and without loss of leave credits for attending central negotiating meetings with the Hospital Central Negotiating Committee in direct negotiations up to and including conciliation. If the parties are unable to arrive at a negotiated collective agreement through either direct negotiations or conciliation, the Hospital agrees that members of the Union Negotiating Committee shall receive unpaid leave for purpose of attending arbitration hearings.

6.05 <u>List of Union Representatives</u>

The Union agrees to provide and maintain an up-to-date list of all Union Representatives (including Union Stewards, Union Executive, Grievance Committee, Labour/Management Committee and Negotiating Committee) to the Director of Human Resources or designate.

All new employees will have the opportunity to meet with a representative of the Union in the employ of the Hospital for a period of up to fifteen (15) minutes during the employee's probationary period, without loss of regular earnings. The purpose of such meeting will be to acquaint the employee(s) with such representative of the Union and the collective agreement. These interviews will be scheduled in advance and may be arranged collectively or individually by the Hospital.

ARTICLE 7 - JOINT HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE

- 7.01 It is a mutual interest of the parties to promote health and safety in workplaces and to prevent and reduce the occurrence of workplace injuries and occupational diseases. The parties agree that health and safety is of the utmost importance and agree to promote health and safety and wellness throughout the organization. The employer shall provide orientation and training in health and safety to new and current employees, and employees shall attend required health and safety training sessions.
- 7.02 Recognizing its responsibilities under the applicable legislation, the Hospital agrees to accept as a member of its Joint Health and Safety Committee, at least one (1) representative selected or appointed by the Union from amongst bargaining unit employees.
- NOTE: Where there are multiple sites, the Local Parties are referred to Article 27 (Multisite Language) to determine Local Applicability of Health & Safety Committee structure.
- 7.03 Such Committee shall identify potential dangers and hazards, institute means of improving health and safety programmes and recommend actions to be taken to improve conditions related to safety and health.
- 7.04 It is understood that consultation on issues of mutual concern will occur between the Joint Health and Safety Committee and Infection Control.
- 7.05 The Hospital agrees to co-operate in providing necessary information to enable the Committee to fulfil its functions.
- 7.06 Meetings shall be held every second month or more frequently at the call of a cochair, when requested. The Committee shall maintain minutes of all meetings and make the same available for review.
- Any representative appointed or selected in accordance with 7.02 hereof, shall serve for a term of at least one (1) calendar year from the date of appointment. Time off for such representative(s) to attend meetings of the Joint Health and Safety Committee in accordance with the foregoing, shall be granted.

A member of a committee is entitled to:

- a) one (1) hour or such longer period of time as the committee determines is necessary to prepare for each committee meeting;
- b) such time as is necessary to attend meetings of the committee; and

c) such time as is necessary to carry out inspections and investigations contemplated under subsection 9(26), 9(27), and 9(31) of the Occupational Health and Safety Act R.S.O. 1990 as amended up to and including 1998.

A member of a committee shall be deemed to be at work during the times described above and the member's employer shall pay the member for those times at the member's regular or premium rate as may be proper.

- 7.08 The Hospital will ensure that there is one (1) OPSEU member certified, as described in the Occupational Health and Safety Act R.S.O.1990, as amended up to and including 1998 among the OPSEU bargaining unit(s) at the Hospital. Such member on the committee will be selected or appointed by the Union. All issues relating to salary and costs associated with obtaining certification shall be in accordance with article 14.06.
- 7.09 The parties agree that the following items are appropriate for discussion at committee meetings:
 - Proposed changes to diagnostic or medical machines and equipment that will impact the health and safety of employees;
 - The nature, content and duration of health and safety training programs for employees;
 - The use of personal protective equipment by employees;

The committee may, in addition to the above, discuss other items relating to the health and safety of employees.

- 7.10 At committee meetings the Hospital shall provide the committee with a summary of all lost-time claims, health care claims, occupational disease claims, reports on accidents and critical or fatal injuries. In addition, all relevant government directives and orders shall be provided to the committee. The committee shall review this information and propose methods of reducing the number of injuries or accidents.
- 7.11 This section does not apply to a worker
 - (a) when a circumstance described below is inherent in the workers' work or is a normal condition of the worker's employment; or
 - (b) when the worker's refusal to work would directly endanger the life, health or safety of another person.

A worker may refuse to work or do particular work where he or she has reason to believe that,

- (a) any equipment, machine, device or thing the worker is to use or operate is likely to endanger himself, herself, or another worker,
- (b) the physical condition of the workplace or the part thereof in which he or she works or is to work is likely to endanger himself or herself; or

- (c) any equipment, machine, device or thing he or she is to use or operate or the physical condition of the workplace or the part thereof in which he or she works or is to work is in contravention of the Occupational Health and Safety Act or the regulations and such contravention is likely to endanger himself, herself or another worker.
- A worker who is required by the hospital to wear or use any protective clothing, equipment or device shall be instructed and trained in its care, use and limitations before wearing or using it for the first time and at regular intervals thereafter and the worker shall participate in such instruction and training. The hospital shall ensure that the personal protective clothing, equipment, or device it provides will be maintained in good condition.
- 7.13 The committee shall participate in all inquiries and investigations pursuant to the Occupational Health and Safety Act. The co-chairs* will determine the appropriate member or members who will participate in the investigation. If neither co-chair is available, the most appropriate committee member will be designated to participate in the investigation. In determining the appropriate member or members who will participate in the investigation, the parties recognize the interests of an OPSEU representative being involved in an investigation that involves an OPSEU bargaining unit member.

*NOTE: If there is only one co-chair available, he or she will determine who will participate in the investigation.

7.14 The Union agrees to fully support the hospital in promoting safety rules and practices. Additionally, the Union will encourage its members in the observation of all safety rules and practices.

7.15 <u>Hepatitis B Vaccine</u>

Where the Hospital identifies high risk areas where employees are exposed to Hepatitis B, the Hospital will provide, at no cost to the employees, a Hepatitis B vaccine.

7.16 Influenza Vaccine

The parties agree that influenza vaccinations may be beneficial for patients and employees. Upon a recommendation pertaining to a facility or a specifically designated area(s) thereof from the Medical Officer of Health or in compliance with applicable provincial legislation, the following rules will apply:

- (a) Employees shall, subject to the following, be required to be vaccinated for influenza.
- (b) If the full cost of such medication is not covered by some other source, the Hospital will pay the full or incremental cost for the vaccine and will endeavour to offer vaccinations during an employee's working hours. In addition, employees will be provided with information, including risks and side effects, regarding the vaccine.
- (c) Hospitals recognize that employees have the right to refuse any required vaccination.

- (d) If an employee refuses to take the vaccine required under this provision, she or he may be placed on an unpaid leave of absence during any influenza outbreak in the hospital until such time as the employee is cleared to return to work. If an employee is placed on unpaid leave, she or he can use banked lieu time or vacation credits in order to keep her or his pay whole.
- (e) If an employee refuses to take the vaccine because it is medically contraindicated, and where a medical certificate is provided to this effect, she or he will be reassigned during the outbreak period, unless reassignment is not possible, in which case the employee will be paid. It is agreed that any such reassignment will not adversely impact the scheduled hours of other employees.
- (f) If an employee gets sick as a result of the vaccination, and applies for WSIB, the Hospital will not oppose the claim.
- (g) Notwithstanding the above, the Hospital may offer the vaccine on a voluntary basis to an employee free of charge.
- (h) This clause shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the Ontario Human Rights Code.

ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE & ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- 8.01 Employees shall have the right, upon request, to the presence of a Union Steward at any stage of the grievance procedure, including the complaint stage, or at any time when formal discipline is imposed. The Hospital agrees that it will not discipline an employee without just cause. Where the Hospital deems it necessary to suspend or discharge an employee, the Hospital shall notify the Union, in writing, of such suspension or discharge.
- 8.02 For the purpose of this Agreement, a grievance is defined as a difference arising between a member of the bargaining unit and the Hospital relating to the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of the Agreement.
- 8.03 (1) It is the mutual desire of the parties hereto that complaints shall be adjusted as quickly as possible, and it is understood that an employee has no grievance until he has first given his immediate supervisor the opportunity of adjusting his complaint. Such complaint shall be discussed with his immediate supervisor within seven (7) calendar days from the event giving rise to the grievance, or from when the employee should have reasonably become aware of the event giving rise to the grievance. Failing settlement within seven (7) calendar days, it shall then be taken up as a grievance within the seven (7) calendar days following his immediate supervisor's decision in the following manner and sequence:
 - (2) The employee must submit the grievance through the Local Union, signed by the grievor and the Local Union President, or designate, to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Hospital, or designate, with a copy to the immediate supervisor. The employee may be accompanied, if he so desires,

by his union steward. The grievance shall identify the nature of the grievance, the remedy sought, and should specify the provisions of the Agreement which are alleged to have been violated.

- (3) The parties will have a period of up to thirty (30) calendar days from the date the grievance is filed to attempt to resolve the grievance, and in any case, to provide the Union with a formal written response setting out the Hospital's position on the matter.
- (4) During the thirty (30) day resolution period referred to above, the parties will attempt to resolve the matter(s) in dispute through a meeting or a series of meetings which shall involve the individuals with authority to resolve the grievance. In all cases, the meeting(s) shall include the Union Grievance Committee.
- (5) Prior to the initial meeting date being established, the parties will provide document disclosure on a without prejudice basis to each other, with the purpose of providing both parties with the opportunity to understand the grievance and to prepare for the resolution meeting(s).

In determining a date for the meeting the parties will consider:

- (i) the time needed for research, consultation and preparation for the meeting(s) and,
- (ii) the time needed, after the meeting, and before the expiry of the thirty (30) day period, to conduct follow-up activities including the possibility of holding further meetings.

For these reasons the initial meeting will generally take place during the middle ten (10) days of the thirty (30) day period.

- (6) In resolving the dispute, the parties will hold the meeting, and any other meetings as may be agreed, to thoroughly consider the grievance and attempt to find a resolution. The governing principle will be that the parties have a mutual interest in their own solutions and avoiding, if at all possible, having the decision made by an arbitrator.
- (7) If the parties are unable to resolve the grievance, the Hospital will provide the Union with a written response to the grievance by the end of the thirtieth (30th) day following the date of the filing of the grievance.
- (8) The Union will then have a period of fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the Hospital's response to determine if the response is acceptable, or will refer the matter to arbitration.
- (9) If the grievance is filed by the Hospital, the Union will provide a response by the end of the thirtieth (30th) day following the date the grievance was filed. The Hospital will have fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the Union's response to determine if it will accept the Union's response or will refer the matter to arbitration.

8.04 Policy Grievance

A grievance arising directly between the Hospital and the Union concerning the interpretation, application or alleged violation of the Agreement shall be originated at the level of the CEO within fourteen (14) calendar days following the circumstances giving rise to the grievance.

It is expressly understood, however, that the provisions of this Article may not be used with respect to a grievance directly affecting an employee which he could have instituted himself and the regular grievance procedure shall not be thereby bypassed. Where the grievance is a Hospital grievance it shall be filed with the Local Union President or designate.

8.05 <u>Group Grievance</u>

Where a number of employees have identical grievances and each one would be entitled to grieve separately, they may present a group grievance in writing through the Local Union, signed by each employee who is grieving and the Local Union President, or designate, to the CEO, or his designate, within fourteen (14) calendar days after the circumstances giving rise to the grievance have occurred. The grievance shall then be treated in the manner as set out for an individual grievance.

8.06 <u>Discharge Grievance</u>

The release of a probationary employee shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

The Hospital agrees that it will not discharge, without just cause, an employee who has completed his probationary period. A claim by an employee who has completed his probationary period that he has been unjustly discharged shall be treated as a grievance. Such grievance shall be submitted through the Local Union, signed by the grievor and the Local Union President, or designate, to the CEO of the Hospital, or designate within seven (7) calendar days after the date the discharge is effected. Such grievance may be settled by:

- (a) confirming the Hospital's action in dismissing the employee, or
- (b) reinstating the employee with or without loss of seniority and with or without full compensation for the time lost, or
- (c) any other arrangement which may be deemed just and equitable.

Failing settlement under the foregoing procedure, any grievance, including a question as to whether the grievance is arbitrable, may be submitted to arbitration as herein provided. If no written request for arbitration is received within fourteen (14) calendar days after the decision under the foregoing procedure is given, the grievance shall be deemed to have been abandoned.

- 8.08 All agreements reached under the grievance procedure between the representatives of the Hospital, the representatives of the Union and the grievor(s) will be final and binding upon the parties.
- When either party requests that any matter be submitted to arbitration as provided in this Article, it shall make such request in writing addressed to the other party to this Agreement, and at the same time appoint a nominee. Within seven (7) calendar days thereafter, the other party shall appoint its nominee, provided however, that if such party fails to appoint its nominee as herein required, the Minister of Labour for the Province of Ontario shall have the power to make such appointment upon application thereto by the party invoking the arbitration procedure. The two nominees shall attempt to agree upon a Chair of the Arbitration Board. If they are unable to agree upon such a Chair within a period of fourteen (14) calendar days, they shall then request the Minister of Labour for the Province of Ontario to appoint a Chair.
- 8.10 No person may be appointed as an arbitrator who has been involved in an attempt to negotiate or settle the grievance, except as herein provided.
- No matter may be submitted to arbitration which has not been properly carried through all requisite steps of the grievance procedure.
- 8.12 The Arbitration Board shall not be authorized to make any decision inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement, or to alter, modify, add to or amend any part of this Agreement.
- 8.13 The proceedings of the Arbitration Board will be expedited by the parties. The decision of the majority, and where there is no majority, the decision of the Chair, will be final and binding upon the parties hereto and the employee(s).
- 8.14 Each of the parties will bear the expense of its nominee, and the parties will share equally the fees and expenses of the Chair of the Arbitration Board.
- 8.15 The time limits set out in this Article are mandatory and failure to comply strictly with such time limits, except by the written agreement of the parties, shall result in the grievance being deemed to have been abandoned.
- 8.16 The parties to this agreement wish to encourage the settlement of grievances as soon as is possible and, wherever possible, without resort to arbitration. For these reasons:
 - 1) The parties are encouraged to take advantage of the process for mediation/arbitration as provided for in S. 50 of the <u>Labour Relations Act</u>, 1995 (R.S.O. 1995 as amended) (the "Act").
 - When the parties do not elect to use S. 50 of the Act in the period immediately following the referral of a matter to arbitration, the parties will commence a period of review. During this time they will each seek informed opinion with respect to the matter in dispute and consider whether the issues involved are such that the assistance of a mediator, or some form of early intervention, may be helpful. It is expected that this will occur within the first sixty (60) calendar days following referral of the matter to arbitration,

- avoiding the delay and costs that result from this process occurring immediately prior to an established hearing date.
- By mutual agreement, the parties at the local level can create a list of arbitrators.
- Where Arbitration board is referred to in the Agreement, the parties may mutually agree in writing to substitute a single arbitrator for the Arbitration Board at the time of reference to arbitration and the other provisions referring to arbitration board shall appropriately apply.
- Notwithstanding the time limits as set out herein, in the interest of bringing the matter to an expeditious conclusion, where the decision or response is provided in less than the number of days provided above, any subsequent response will measure from the receipt of the response.

ARTICLE 9 - LETTERS OF REPRIMAND AND ACCESS TO FILES

- 9.01 Any letter of reprimand or suspension will be removed from the record of an employee eighteen (18) months following the receipt by the employee of such letter or suspension provided that the employee's record has been discipline free for such eighteen (18) month period. Leaves of absence in excess of thirty (30) calendar days will not count towards the eighteen 18 month period.
- 9.02 Each employee shall have reasonable access to his file for the purposes of reviewing any evaluations, letters of counselling or formal disciplinary notations contained therein. Such review shall take place in the presence of the employer. A copy of the above documents will be provided to the employee on request. An employee is entitled to place a written response to letters of counselling in his file.

ARTICLE 10 - SENIORITY AND SERVICE

10.01 Probationary Period

Newly hired employees shall be considered to be on probation for a period of ninety (90) tours worked from date of last hire (675 hours of work for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day). If retained after the probationary period, the employee shall be credited with seniority from date of last hire. With the written consent of the Hospital, the probationary employee and the President of the Local Union or his designate, such probationary period may be extended.

It is understood and agreed that any extension to the probationary period will not exceed an additional sixty (60) tours (450 hours of work for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day) worked or such lesser period as may be agreed by the parties. The release of a probationary employee shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

10.02 <u>Seniority List</u>

A seniority list will be maintained for each department. The Hospital shall post such list and provide the Union with a copy, indicating bargaining unit seniority, twice per year.

(Article 10.03 (a) is applicable to part-time employees only)

10.03 Seniority Accumulation

- (a) (i) Part-time employees shall have their seniority expressed on the basis of number of hours worked in the bargaining unit. (The foregoing is for clarity only and therefore does not modify an employee's level of seniority under this collective agreement or previous collective agreements.)
 - (ii) Notwithstanding Article 10.03 (a) (i) seniority shall accrue during a pregnancy leave or parental leave. Seniority shall accumulate for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while an employee is on pregnancy leave. For parental leave, seniority shall accumulate for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks if the employee did not take pregnancy leave.

For the purposes of pregnancy leave and parental leave, seniority accrual shall be determined by multiplying the normal weekly hours times the number of weeks the employee is absent on such leave.

(iii) Seniority for part-time employees shall accrue for absences due to a disability resulting in WSIB benefits, or illness or injury in excess of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days. The rate of accumulation will be based on the employee's normal weekly hours paid over the preceding qualifying 26 weeks. A qualifying week is a week where the employee is not absent due to vacation, pregnancy/parental leave, WSIB, or illness or injury that exceed thirty (30) consecutive calendar days.

(Article 10.03 (b) is applicable to full-time employees only)

- (b) Full-time employees will accumulate seniority on the basis of their continuous service in the bargaining unit from the last date of hire, except as otherwise provided in the collective agreement or previous collective agreements. (The foregoing is for clarity only and therefore does not modify an employee's level of seniority under this collective agreement or previous collective agreements.)
- (c) In the application of seniority, no employee's seniority date may pre-date their start date.

A part-time employee cannot accrue more than 1650 hours of seniority and service in a twelve (12) month period. The 12-month period shall be negotiated locally and shall be set out in the Local Appendix.

10.04 Transfer of Seniority

Note: There will be no retroactive monetary adjustment as a result of implementation of this clause. This means that service credits for the purposes of placement on the grid, vacation entitlement and any other service-based benefit will be adjusted, but no retroactive money, vacation days, or service-based benefit will be owing.

Seniority and service shall be retained by an employee in the event he is transferred from full-time to part-time or vice versa. An employee whose status is changed from full-time to part-time shall receive credit for his seniority and service on the basis of 1650 hours worked for each year of full-time seniority and service. An employee whose status is changed from part-time to full-time shall receive credit for his seniority and service on the basis of one (1) year of seniority and service for each 1650 hours worked. Any time worked in excess of an equivalent shall be pro-rated at the time of transfer.

NOTE: Article 10.05 applies to full-time employees only.

10.05 Effect of Absence

(a) (i) It is understood that during an approved unpaid absence not exceeding thirty (30) continuous days or any approved absence paid by the Hospital, both seniority and service will accrue.

During an unpaid absence exceeding thirty (30) continuous calendar days, credit for service for purposes of salary increments, vacation, sick leave, or any other benefit under any provision of the Collective Agreement or elsewhere, shall be suspended; the benefits concerned appropriately reduced on a pro rata basis and the employee's anniversary date adjusted accordingly.

In addition, the employee will become responsible for full payment of subsidized employee benefits in which he is participating for the period of the absence. The employee may arrange with the Hospital to prepay the full premium of any applicable subsidized benefits in which he is participating during the period of leave in excess of thirty (30) continuous days to ensure continuing coverage.

It is further understood that during such absence, credit for seniority shall be suspended and not accrue during the period of absence. Notwithstanding this provision, seniority shall accrue if an employee's absence is due to disability resulting in WSIB benefits or LTD benefits including the period of the disability program covered by Employment Insurance.

(ii) Notwithstanding Article 10.05 (a) (i), seniority and service shall accumulate for a period of up to seventeen (17) weeks while an

employee is on pregnancy leave. For parental leave, seniority and service shall accumulate for a period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks after the parental leave began, if the employee also took pregnancy leave, and thirty-seven (37) weeks if the employee did not take pregnancy leave.

The Hospital will continue to pay its share of the premiums of the subsidized employee benefits, including pension, in which the employee is participating for a period from the commencement of the leave up to seventeen (17) weeks while an employee is on pregnancy leave and up to thirty-five (35) weeks while the employee is on parental leave (thirty-seven (37) weeks if the employee did not take pregnancy leave), unless the employee does not intend to pay her contributions.

(b) The Hospital agrees to provide, in response to an employee's request, his service and/or anniversary date.

10.06 <u>Application of Seniority on Layoff and Recall</u>

For purposes of layoff and recall, seniority shall operate on a department-wide basis, i.e., laboratory, radiology or such other departments which exist in the individual hospitals where the employees are covered by this Agreement.

10.07 Layoff and Recall Rights

Seniority lists and layoff and recall rights for full-time employees shall be separate from seniority lists and layoff and recall rights for part-time employees, subject to Article 11.04 (1) (d), (e) and (g).

10.08 Retention & Accumulation of Seniority on Transfer Outside Bargaining Unit

An employee who is transferred to a position outside the bargaining unit for:

- (a) a period of less than eighteen (18) months or such longer period as the parties may agree upon or;
- (b) a specific term of appointment, including temporarily replacing an employee outside the bargaining unit

shall retain but not accumulate seniority held at the time of transfer. In the event the employee is returned to a position in the bargaining unit within the time periods noted in (a) or (b) above he shall be credited with the seniority held at the time of transfer and shall resume accumulation from the date of his return to the bargaining unit.

Notwithstanding the above, the parties recognize that there may be unique situations which arise where it may be appropriate for seniority and service to accrue for work outside the bargaining unit. Where such situations exist, the local parties have the authority to negotiate the accumulation of seniority for such

periods of time. Where the local parties so agree, union dues will continue to be deducted.

10.09 Loss of Service and Seniority

An employee shall lose all service and seniority and shall be deemed to have terminated if he:

- (a) leaves of his own accord;
- is discharged and the discharge is not reversed through the grievance or arbitration procedure;
- (c) has been laid off without recall pursuant to Article 11.07 for twenty-four (24) months.
- is absent from scheduled work for a period of three (3) or more consecutive working days, without notifying the Hospital of such absence and providing a reason satisfactory to the Hospital;
- (e) fails to return to work (subject to the provisions of (d)) upon termination of an authorized leave of absence without satisfactory reason or utilizes a leave of absence, without permission, for purposes other than that for which the leave was granted;
- (f) fails upon being notified of a recall to signify his intention to return within five (5) calendar days after he has received the notice of recall mailed by registered mail to the last known address according to the records of the Hospital and fails to report to work within ten (10) calendar days after he has received the notice of recall or such further period of time as may be agreed upon by the parties.

ARTICLE 11 - LAYOFF AND RECALL

NOTE: Article 11 applies to Full-Time and Regular Part-Time Employees only.

- The Hospital and the Union agree to work jointly to minimize any adverse effects of a long term or permanent layoff (greater than thirteen (13) weeks duration) on employees, and maximize creative approaches that meet the interests of both the Hospital and the employees. Accordingly, in the event of such a layoff the Hospital will:
 - (a) provide the Union with no less than five (5) months notice.
 - (b) commencing at the time that notice is given to the Union, and prior to the giving of written notice to the employees if possible, jointly evaluate, plan and review:
 - the reason causing the layoff
 - the service the Hospital will undertake after the layoff

- how the Hospital intends to effect the lay-off, including areas where layoffs will occur, and which employees will be laid off
- ways the Hospital can assist employees to find alternate employment.
- ways and means of avoiding or minimizing the impact, including:
 - identifying and reviewing possible alternatives to any action that the Hospital may propose taking;
 - identifying and reviewing ways to address on-the-job retraining needs of employees;
 - identifying vacant positions within the Hospital for which surplus members of the bargaining unit might qualify, or such positions which are currently filled but which are expected to become vacant within a twelve (12) month period.
 - Identifying Contracting in opportunities
 - Mapping bumping options for affected employees, to the extent possible.

To allow the Labour Management Committee to carry out its mandated role under this Article, the Hospital will provide the Committee with pertinent financial and staffing information and with a copy of any reorganization plans which impact on the bargaining unit.

- 11.02 Any agreement between the Hospital and the Union resulting from the above review concerning the method of implementation will take precedence over the terms of this Agreement.
- 11.03 In the event of layoff, the Hospital shall lay off employees in the reverse order of their seniority within their classification, providing that those employees who remain on the job have the qualifications and ability to perform the work.

Employees shall be entitled to three (3) months written notice of permanent or long term layoff. To assist the employee in this process, layoff notices will contain, where possible, specific information on bumping options. It is agreed and understood that Regulation 327, Section 7, of the Employment Standards Act applies. It is further agreed that notice to both the Union and the employees may run concurrently.

After receipt of such written notice, affected employees will have a period of up to seven (7) calendar days to indicate to the Hospital their choice of options as outlined below. Where requested, the employee will have the opportunity to meet with the hospital, and be provided with union representation to discuss the options. The Hospital agrees to meet with the affected employee(s) within seven (7) calendar days after it has received written notification of the employee's choice of entitlement, in order to verify his/her choice or to discuss alternatives.

An employee who has the right to displace another employee shall have the right to the same training period as would typically be accorded to a new employee. Such training period may commence prior to the anticipated layoff.

Note:

For purposes of layoff under Article 11, the clinical laboratory department would include the sub-disciplines of laboratory medicine. For purposes of layoff under this Article, a discipline is a service function within a department.

- 11.04 (1) An employee who is subject to permanent or long-term layoff shall have the following entitlements:
 - (a) accept the layoff and be placed on a recall list for twenty-four (24) months from the date the actual layoff begins; or
 - (b) accept the layoff, and thereafter, at the Employers option, receive pay in-lieu of notice and not be required to report for work during the notice period. It is agreed and understood that during the period of notice the employee's wages and benefits will be maintained as if he/she were at work, and that his/her layoff will be deemed to have commenced at the end of the notice period.
 - (c) the employee may displace an employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee within his or her classification, identical paying classification, or lower paying classification in his or her discipline or department, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee within his or her classification, identical paying classification, or lower paying classification in his or her discipline or department.
 - (d) An employee who has the right to displace another employee shall have the right to the same training period as would typically be accorded to a new employee. Such training period may commence prior to the anticipated layoff.
 - (e) If the full-time employee cannot displace a full-time employee in (c), the employee may displace a part-time employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee in her classification, identical paying classification, or lower paying classification in her discipline or department, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee in her classification, identical paying classification, or lower paying classification in her discipline or department.
 - (f) If the part-time employee cannot displace a part-time employee in (c), the employee may displace a full-time employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee in her classification, identical paying classification, or lower paying classification in her discipline or department, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee in her classification, identical paying classification, or lower paying classification in her discipline or department.
 - (g) If the employee cannot displace an employee in his or her discipline or department, the employee may displace an employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee in a lower or

identical paying classification in another department, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee in a lower or identical paying classification in another department.

- (h) An employee who has the right to displace another employee shall have the right to the same training period as would typically be accorded to a new employee. Such training period may commence prior to the anticipated layoff.
- (i) If the full-time employee cannot displace a full-time employee in (e), the employee may displace a part-time employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee in another department, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee in another department.
 - (ii) If the part-time employee cannot displace a part-time employee in (f), the employee may displace a full-time employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee in another department, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee in another department.
- (j) An employee who has the right to displace another employee shall have the right to the same training period as would typically be accorded to a new employee. Such training period may commence prior to the anticipated layoff.
- 11.04 (2) An employee who is subject to layoff for a period not greater than thirteen weeks shall have the following entitlements:
 - (a) accept the layoff and be placed on a recall list for twenty-four (24) months. During this period of layoff the employee may elect to receive payment of some or all of his/her earned vacation credits up to a maximum of the period of the layoff. It is understood that his/her vacation bank and entitlement will be appropriately reduced for that vacation year; or
 - (b) displace an employee within his or her classification who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee within his or her classification, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior in his or her classification in his or her discipline.
 - (c) An employee who has the right to displace another employee shall have the right to the same training period as would typically be accorded to a new employee. Such training period may commence prior to the anticipated layoff.
 - (d) If the employee cannot displace an employee in (b), the employee may displace an employee who has lesser bargaining unit seniority and who is the least senior employee in a lower or identical paying classification in his or her discipline, if the employee originally subject to layoff can perform the duties of the least senior employee in a lower or identical paying classification in his or her discipline.

- 11.05 Where an employee has his or her shift cancelled, the employee shall not be entitled to displace another employee.
- An employee who displaces an employee in a lower paying classification will be placed on the salary grid of the lower classification consistent with the level he would have achieved in the lower classification based on his service and experience with the Hospital.
- An employee shall have opportunity of recall from a layoff to an available opening in his or her former classification, or an equal or lower paying classification than the one from which the employee was originally laid off, in order of seniority, provided he/she has the qualifications and ability to perform the work, before such opening is filled on a regular basis under a job posting procedure. The posting procedure in the collective agreement shall not apply until the recall process has been completed. An employee who is recalled shall be credited with the seniority he/she had at the time of the layoff.
- 11.08 (a) An employee recalled to work in a different classification from which he was laid off, or an employee who has displaced an employee in a lower classification shall be entitled to return to the position he held prior to the layoff should it become vacant within twenty-four (24) months of the layoff, provided that the employee remains qualified and able to perform the duties of his former position.

No new employees shall be hired until all those laid off have been given an opportunity to return to work and have failed to do so, in accordance with the loss of seniority provision, or have been found unable to perform the work available.

- (b) (i) In addition to 11.08(a) a full-time employee who has displaced a part-time employee shall be entitled to return to the position he held prior to the layoff should it become vacant within twenty-four (24) months of the layoff, provided that the employee remains qualified and able to perform the duties of his former position.
 - (ii) In addition to 11.08(a) a part-time employee who has displaced a full-time employee shall be entitled to return to the position he held prior to the layoff should it become vacant within twenty-four (24) months of the layoff, provided that the employee remains qualified and able to perform the duties of his former position.
- The Hospital shall notify the employee of recall opportunity by registered mail, addressed to the last address on record with the Hospital (which notification shall be deemed to be received on the fifth day following the date of mailing). The notification shall state the job to which the employee is eligible to be recalled and the date and time at which the employee shall report for work. The employee is solely responsible for his proper address being on record with the Hospital.
- 11.10 Where there is an available opening which has not been filled in accordance with Article 11.07, an employee who has either accepted a layoff or is under notice of layoff and is unable to displace any other employee will be given an opportunity for

on-the-job retraining of up to six (6) months, subject to the staffing requirements of the hospital, if, with the benefit of such retraining, the employee could reasonably be expected to obtain the qualifications and ability to perform the work. Such opportunities will be provided in order of seniority. During the period of on-the-job retraining the recall period will continue to apply from the original date of layoff. If, following the period of on-the-job retraining the employee has not obtained the qualifications and ability to perform the work, the employee will be returned to the recall list or will be terminated in accordance with Article 10.09 (c).

- In the event that an employee who has been laid off and is placed on a recall list is assigned, by the Hospital, ad hoc shifts or to a temporary vacancy, she will retain, but not accumulate his or her seniority and service held at the time of layoff. Employees in such assignments will be treated as part-time. Where an employee is recalled pursuant to Article 11.07, she will receive credit for service and seniority for shifts worked under this provision. Any assignments under this provision will be offered on a voluntary basis.
- 11.12 (a) Local Human Resource Plans will apply to Health Services Restructuring Commission directives. In other circumstances, the balance of this Article will apply.
 - (b) Before issuing notice of long term layoff pursuant to Article 11.03, and following notice pursuant to Article 11.01 (a), the Hospital will make offers of early retirement allowance in accordance with the following conditions:
 - (i) The Hospital will first make offers in order of seniority in the departments(s) and in classifications where layoffs would otherwise occur. The Hospital will offer the same number of early retirements as the number of lay-offs it would otherwise make.
 - (ii) The Hospital will make offers to employees eligible for early retirement under the Hospital pension plan (including regular part-time, if applicable, whether or not they participate in the hospital pension plan).
 - (iii) If no employees on the unit affected accept the offer, the Hospital will then extend the offer to other employees in the same classification as that being affected in the bargaining unit in order of seniority.
 - (iv) The number of early retirements the Hospital approves will not exceed the number of employees in that classification who would otherwise be laid off.
 - An employee who elects an early retirement option shall receive, following completion of the last day of work, a retirement allowance of two (2) weeks' salary for each year of service, to a maximum ceiling of fifty-two (52) weeks' salary.
 - (c) If after making offers of early retirement, individual layoff notices are still required, prior to issuing those notices the Hospital will offer a voluntary early exit option in accordance with the following conditions:

- i) The hospital will first make offers in the classifications within department(s) where layoffs would otherwise occur. If more employees than are required are interested, the Hospital will make its decision based on seniority.
- ii) If insufficient employees in the department affected accept the offer, the Hospital will then extend the offer to employees in the same classification in other departments. If more employees than are required are interested, the Hospital will make its decision based on seniority.
- iii) In no case will the Hospital approve an employee's request under (i) and (ii) above for a voluntary early exit option, if the employees remaining are not qualified to perform the available work.
- iv) The number of voluntary early exit options the Hospital approves will not exceed the number of employees in that classification who would otherwise be laid off. The last day of employment for an employee who accepts a voluntary early exit option will be at the Hospital's discretion and will be no earlier than thirty (30) calendar days immediately following the employee's written acceptance of the offer.

An employee who elects a voluntary early exit option shall receive, following completion of the last day of work, a separation allowance of two (2) weeks' salary for each year of service, to a maximum of fifty-two (52) weeks' pay.

- (d) Where an employee has received individual notice of long term layoff under Article 11.03 such employee may resign and receive a separation allowance as follows:
 - (i) Where an employee resigns effective within thirty (30) days after receiving individual notice of long term layoff, she or he shall be entitled to a separation allowance of two (2) weeks' salary for each year of continuous service to a maximum of sixteen (16) weeks' pay, and, on production of receipts from an approved educational program, within twelve (12) months of resignation will be reimbursed for tuition fees up to a maximum of three thousand (\$3,000.00) dollars.
 - (ii) Where an employee resigns effective later than thirty (30) days after receiving individual notice of long term layoff, he or she shall be entitled to a separation allowance of four (4) weeks salary, and, on production of receipts from an approved educational program, within twelve (12) months of resignation will be reimbursed for tuition fees up to a maximum of one thousand two hundred and fifty (\$1,250.00) dollars.

ARTICLE 12 - TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE

NOTE: Article 12 applies to full-time and regular part-time employees only. It does not apply to casual part-time employees.

12.01 The Hospital undertakes to notify the Union in advance, so far as practicable, of any technological changes which the Hospital has decided to introduce which will significantly change the status of employees within the bargaining unit.

The Hospital agrees to discuss with the Union the effect of such technological changes on the employment status of employees and to consider practical ways and means of minimizing the adverse effect, if any, upon employees concerned.

Employees with one (1) or more years of continuous service who are subject to layoff under conditions referred to above, will be given notice of the impending change in employment status at the earliest reasonable time in keeping with the notification to the Union as set forth above and the requirements of the applicable legislation.

Where new or greater skills are required than are already possessed by affected employees under the present methods of operation, such employees shall be given a period of training, with due consideration being given to the employee's previous educational background, during which they may perfect or acquire the skills necessitated by the newer method of operation. The employer will assume the cost of tuition and travel. There shall be no reduction in wage or salary rates during the training period of any such employee. Training shall be given during the hours of work whenever possible and may extend for up to six (6) months.

ARTICLE 13 - JOB POSTING, PROMOTION AND TRANSFER

Where a vacancy exists, or where the Hospital creates a new position in the bargaining unit, such vacancy shall be posted for a period of seven (7) calendar days. Applications for such vacancies shall be made in writing within the seven (7) day period referenced herein.

Notwithstanding the above, the Hospital may fill at its own discretion vacancies caused by:

- (a) illness;
- (b) accident;
- (c) pregnancy and parental leaves of absence;
- (d) leave of absence not expected to exceed twelve (12) months;
- (e) vacation;
- (f) specific tasks not expected to exceed six (6) months.

In filling such temporary vacancies, the Hospital shall consider employees who have expressed an interest, in writing, in filling such vacancies, on the basis of the selection criteria as set out in Article 13.06.

Employees in bargaining units at the Hospital represented by OPSEU selected to fill such temporary vacancies agree not to apply for other temporary positions while filling the temporary vacancy, unless the start of the new assignment is after the expiration of the existing assignment. Upon completion of the temporary vacancy, the bargaining unit employee will be returned to his former position. Such employees shall continue to accrue seniority while filling a temporary vacancy.

Employees newly hired to fill such temporary vacancy will not accrue seniority during the filling of such vacancy. If such employees successfully post into a permanent position within the bargaining unit, prior to the end of the non-posted vacancy, they will be credited with seniority from their last date of hire. The release or discharge of such employee at the completion of the temporary vacancy shall not be the subject of a grievance or arbitration.

- Notices of vacancies referred to in 13.01 shall include, for informational purposes: department, classification, qualifications.
- 13.03 A copy of the posted notice will be sent to the local President or his designate, within the aforementioned seven (7) calendar days.
- The name of the successful applicant will be posted and a copy sent to the local President or his designate.
- The Hospital agrees to discuss with unsuccessful applicants ways in which they can improve for future postings, if requested.
- In filling posted vacancies the selection shall be made based on skill, ability, experience, and relevant qualifications of the applicants. Where these factors are relatively equal, bargaining unit seniority shall be the governing factor.
- In matters of promotion and staff transfer, a successful bargaining unit applicant shall be allowed a trial period of up to sixty (60) days (450 hours for employees whose regular hours of work are other than the standard work day) worked during which the Hospital will determine if the employee can satisfactorily perform the job. Within this period the employee may voluntarily return, or be returned by the Hospital, to the position formerly occupied, without loss of seniority. Should the employee return or be returned to his former job, the filling of subsequent vacancies will be reversed.
- An employee who is promoted to a higher rated classification within the bargaining unit will be placed in the range of the higher rated classification so that he shall receive no less an increase in wage rate than the equivalent of one step in the wage rate of his previous classification (provided that he does not exceed the wage rate of the classification to which he has been promoted).

The employee's anniversary date shall be adjusted.

- An employee selected as a result of a posted vacancy need not be considered for a further vacancy for a period of up to six (6) months from his date of selection.
- 13.10 Where there are no successful applicants from within the bargaining unit for posted vacant positions, employees in other OPSEU Paramedical bargaining units at the Hospital will be considered for such staff transfers or promotions prior to considering persons outside OPSEU Paramedical bargaining units at the Hospital. The employees eligible for consideration shall be limited to those employees who have applied for the position in accordance with Article 13, and selection shall be

made in accordance with Article 13.06. All provisions of Article 13 will apply to employees selected in accordance with this provision.

13.11 From time to time the job duties or scope of a bargaining unit position(s) may change in such a way as to represent a developmental opportunity, a specialization, or a broadening of duties for a limited number of employees within a department (or appropriate work unit), without increasing the complement of employees in the department.

When this occurs, the Hospital shall post this opportunity in the form of an information notice in the relevant department(s) for a period of at least seven (7) calendar days. A copy of the posted notice will be sent to the Local President or designate within the aforementioned seven (7) calendar days. Employees wishing consideration for these opportunities must express their interest, in writing, within the seven (7) day period referenced herein.

The Hospital shall consider employees for these opportunities on the basis of skill, ability, relevant qualifications and seniority. Notwithstanding the above, in order to address operational requirements and efficiencies and to distribute the opportunities amongst eligible employees, the final decision for selection will be at the discretion of the Hospital.

If requested, the Hospital will discuss with unsuccessful applicants reasons why they were not chosen for the opportunity.

ARTICLE 14 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

NOTE: The provisions of Article 14, Leaves of Absence, apply to full-time and regular part-time employees but do not apply to casual part-time employees.

14.01 <u>Personal Leave</u>

Written requests for a personal leave of absence without pay will be considered on an individual basis by the employee's Department Head or his designate. Such requests are to be submitted as far in advance as possible and a written reply will be given. Such leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.

14.02 Union Business Leave

(a) Local Union Business Leave

The Hospital agrees to grant leaves of absence without pay to local bargaining unit members for the purpose of attending Union seminars and/or attending to Union business. The cumulative total leave of absence will be determined locally, but shall not exceed sixty (60) days per year per hospital.

The amount of notice required and the number of employees who may be absent at any one time and from any one area shall be determined locally and will be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

(b) Union Position Leave - F.T.

When an employee is elected as the Union's President or First Vice-President (Provincially) the Union will immediately following such election advise the Employer of the name of the employee so elected. Leave of absence shall be granted from the employee's place of employment for the duration of the current term of office. The Union shall reimburse the Employer the amounts paid on behalf of the employee, including pay and benefits.

- (c) Where an individual of the bargaining units represented centrally by OPSEU is elected or appointed as an Executive Board Member, Executive Officer, member of the central negotiating committee, member of Hospital Professionals Division Executive or as a Membership Development Trainee, such individual shall be granted leave of absence for the time off required to exercise the duties of such appointment. The notice requirements to obtain such time off shall be governed in accordance with the leave of absence policy and procedure of the affected Hospital. Such positions shall be limited to two (2) members from a Hospital with no more than one individual from within a section/division within a Department.
- (d) For leaves of absence without pay for Union business under the terms of this Agreement, including unpaid leave for members of the Central Negotiating Team, the employee's salary and applicable benefits will be maintained by the Hospital and the Union will reimburse the Hospital for the cost of salary and benefits. The Hospital will bill the Union within a reasonable period of time and the Union will reimburse the Hospital within a reasonable period of time. A copy of the bill will be forwarded to the Local at the same time it is sent to the Union. In addition, there shall be no loss of seniority during such leaves of absence.
- (e) The issue of paid time for local president or designate to perform union business shall be determined locally and shall be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

14.03 Bereavement Leave

Any employee who notifies the Hospital as soon as possible following a bereavement will be granted bereavement leave for up to four (4) consecutive scheduled working days off without loss of regular pay from regularly scheduled hours within the nine (9) calendar day period commencing four (4) calendar days prior to the day of the funeral for a parent, spouse or child. "Spouse" for the purposes of bereavement leave will include a partner of the same sex.

Any employee who notifies the Hospital as soon as possible following a bereavement will be granted bereavement leave for up to three (3) consecutive scheduled working days off without loss of regular pay from regularly scheduled hours within the seven (7) calendar day period commencing three (3) calendar days prior to the day of the funeral of a member of his other immediate family.

Immediate family, for the purposes of this section, shall mean sister, brother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, brother-in-law, sister-in-law and grandparent of spouse. An employee shall be granted one (1) day

bereavement leave without loss of regular earnings to attend the funeral of, or a memorial service (or equivalent) for her or his aunt, uncle, niece or nephew.

If a burial or memorial service is not held within the seven (7) or nine (9) calendar day period referenced above, an employee can utilize one (1) day of their entitlement, as determined above, within six (6) months following the date of bereavement for the purposes of attending such burial or memorial service.

A part-time employee shall receive credit for his seniority and service for such leave. For clarity, such credit shall only apply to be reavement leave with pay.

The Hospital, in its discretion, may extend such leave with or without pay. Furthermore, where an employee does not qualify under the above-noted conditions, the Hospital may, nonetheless, grant a paid bereavement leave.

14.04 <u>Jury and Witness Duty</u>

If an employee is requested to serve as a juror in any court of law or is required by subpoena to attend as a witness in a court proceeding in which the Crown is a party, or is required to attend a coroner's inquest in connection with a case concerning the Hospital, the employee shall not lose regular pay because of necessary absence from work due to such attendance, and shall not be required to work on the day of such duty, provided that the employee:

- (a) informs the Employer immediately upon being notified that the employee will be required to attend court or the coroner's inquest;
- (b) presents proof of service requiring the employee's attendance; and
- (c) promptly repays the Employer the amount (other than expenses) paid to the employee for such service as a juror or for attendance as such witness.

(Applicable to full-time employees)

In addition to the foregoing, where an employee is required by subpoena to attend a Court of Law or Coroner's Inquest, in connection with a case arising from the employee's duties at the Hospital, on his regularly scheduled day off or during his regularly scheduled vacation, the Hospital will attempt to reschedule the employee's regular day off or vacation period, it being understood that any rescheduling shall not result in the payment of any premium pay. If the Hospital fails to reschedule such employees, the Hospital shall arrange lieu time off work for all days the employees would otherwise be off work had it not been for the attendance at Court or the Coroner's Inquest.

(Applicable to part-time employees)

In addition to the foregoing, where a part-time employee is required by subpoena to attend a court of law or Coroner's inquest, in connection with a case arising from the employee's duties at the Hospital, on his regularly scheduled day off, he shall receive regular pay as if he had been scheduled to work the day.

14.05 (a) Pregnancy Leave

(i) Pregnancy leave will be granted in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Standards Act, except where amended in this agreement.

(Article 14.05 (a) (ii) is applicable to full-time employees and regular part-time employees only)

(ii) Effective on confirmation by the Employment Insurance Commission of the appropriateness of the Hospital's Supplemental Unemployment Benefit (SUB) plan, and retroactive to date of confirmation by the Employment Insurance Commission, an employee who is on pregnancy leave as provided under this agreement and who is in receipt of Employment Insurance pregnancy benefits pursuant to Section 22 of the Employment Insurance Act, 1996, shall be paid a supplemental unemployment benefit. That benefit will be equivalent to the difference between eighty-four (84%) of her regular weekly earnings and the sum of her weekly Employment Insurance pregnancy benefits during her leave and any other earnings. Such payment shall commence following completion of the two week Employment Insurance waiting period, and receipt by the Hospital of the employee's Employment Insurance cheque stub as proof that she is in receipt of Employment Insurance pregnancy benefits, and shall continue while the employee is in receipt of such benefits, for a maximum period of 15 weeks for a pregnancy leave. The employee's regular weekly earnings shall be determined by multiplying her regular hourly rate on her last day worked prior to the commencement of the leave times her normal weekly hours.

This provision only applies to employees with at least thirteen (13) weeks of continuous service at the hospital prior to the commencement of the pregnancy leave.

The employee does not have any vested right except to receive payments for the covered unemployment period. The plan provides that payment in respect of guaranteed annual remuneration or in respect of deferred remuneration or severance pay benefits are not reduced or increased by payments received under the plan.

(iii) Transfer of Pregnant Employees

Pregnant employees may request to be transferred from their current duties if, in the professional opinion of the employee's physician the pregnancy may be at risk. If such a transfer is not feasible, the pregnant employee, if she so requests, will be granted an unpaid leave of absence before commencement of the current contractual maternity leave provisions.

(iv) Effective June 28, 2005, the employer shall continue to pay the percentage in lieu of benefits for part-time employees based on the employee's normal weekly hours for the full duration (to a maximum of 17 weeks) of the Pregnancy Leave.

(b) Parental Leave

(i) Parental leaves will be granted in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Standards Act, except where amended in this agreement.

(Article 14.05 (b) (ii) is applicable to full-time employees and regular part-time employees only)

(ii) Effective on confirmation by the Employment Insurance Commission of the appropriateness of the Hospital's Supplemental Unemployment Benefit (SUB) plan, and retroactive to date of confirmation by the Employment Insurance Commission, an employee who is on parental leave as provided under this agreement and who is in receipt of Employment Insurance parental benefits pursuant to Section 23 of the Employment Insurance Act, 1996, shall be paid a supplemental That benefit will be equivalent to the unemployment benefit. difference between eighty-four per cent (84%) of her regular weekly earnings and the sum of her weekly Employment Insurance parental benefits during her leave and any other earnings. Such payment shall commence following completion of the two week Employment Insurance waiting period, and receipt by the Hospital of the employee's Employment Insurance cheque stub as proof that she is in receipt of Employment Insurance parental benefits, and shall continue while the employee is in receipt of such benefits, for a maximum period of ten (10) weeks for a parental leave. employee's regular weekly earnings shall be determined by multiplying her regular hourly rate on her last day worked prior to the commencement of the parental leave times her normal weekly hours.

This provision only applies to employees with at least thirteen (13) weeks of continuous service at the hospital prior to the commencement of the parental leave.

The employee does not have any vested right except to receive payments for the covered unemployment period. The plan provides that payment in respect of guaranteed annual remuneration or in respect of deferred remuneration or severance pay benefits are not reduced or increased by payments received under the plan.

(iii) (Applicable to full-time employees only)

Where an employee has become a natural father or has qualified to adopt a child, such employee may be entitled to extend the parental leave up to an aggregate of six (6) months without pay. Such employee shall advise the Hospital as far in advance as possible of their qualifying to adopt, and shall request the leave of absence in writing upon receipt of confirmation of the pending adoption. Such request for an extension of the parental leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.

It is understood that during any such extension of the parental leave, credit for service or seniority for the purposes of salary increments, vacations, sick leave, or any other benefits under any provisions of the collective agreement or elsewhere shall be suspended during such leave and the employee's anniversary date adjusted accordingly. In addition, the employee will become responsible for full payment of subsidized employee benefits in which he or she is participating for the period of the absence.

(Applicable to part-time employees only)

Where an employee has become a natural father or has qualified to adopt a child, such employee may be entitled to extend the parental leave up to an aggregate of six (6) months without pay. Such employee shall advise the Hospital as far in advance as possible of their qualifying to adopt, and shall request the leave of absence in writing upon receipt of confirmation of the pending adoption. Such request for an extension of the parental leave shall not be unreasonably withheld.

It is understood that during any such extension of the parental leave seniority and service do not accumulate.

(iv) Effective June 28, 2005, the employer shall continue to pay the percentage in lieu of benefits for part-time employees based on the employee's normal weekly hours for a period of up to 10 weeks while the employee is on parental leave.

14.06 Education Leave

Where the Hospital directs and the employee agrees to take an educational course to upgrade or acquire new employment qualifications such employee shall not lose regular pay because of necessary absence from work due to participation in such course. The Hospital shall pay the full cost of such course in advance. The Employee may apply to the Hospital for a reasonable advance to cover additional costs associated with the course.

14.07 Pre-Paid leave

(For details on Pre-Paid Leave see Article 29.04)

14.08 <u>Professional College Leave</u>

An employee shall be entitled to leave of absence without loss of earnings from his or her regularly scheduled working hours for the purpose of writing re-certification examinations set by the College according to its Quality Assurance Program.

14.09 <u>Military Leave</u>

An employee may be granted unpaid leave without loss of service or seniority for the purpose of fulfilling his or her minimum training requirements to maintain their status in the Canadian Reserve Force. Such leave shall not exceed two (2) weeks per calendar year. Requests must be made in writing and will be considered on an individual basis by the Employee's Department Head or designate. Such requests are to be submitted as far in advance as possible.

Any requests for military leaves exceeding two (2) weeks may be considered on an individual basis and if approved, service and seniority will continue to accrue for the duration of the leave.

ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE AND LONG-TERM DISABILITY

NOTE: Articles 15.01 – 15.06 apply to full-time employees only.

15.01 The Hospital shall provide a short-term sick leave plan at least equivalent to that described in the 1992 Hospitals of Ontario Disability Income Plan (HOODIP) brochure.

Copies of the HOODIP brochure will be made available to employees upon request.

- The Hospital will pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the billed premium towards coverage of eligible employees under the long term disability plan (HOODIP or equivalent); employees shall pay the balance of the billed premiums through payroll deduction.
- 15.03 The Hospital further agrees to pay employees an amount equal to any loss of benefits under HOODIP for the first two days of the fourth and subsequent period of absence in any calendar year.
- 15.04 Employees with 4 or more years service will be paid at the 100% benefit level for all incidences of absence covered by HOODIP.
- 15.05 a) Any dispute which may arise concerning an employee's entitlement to shortterm or long-term benefits under HOODIP may be subject to grievance and arbitration under the provisions of this Agreement.
 - b) If a claim for long-term disability is denied, the employee must fully comply with the carrier's Medical Appeal Process prior to filing a grievance, provided that the Process is completed within 60 days of its inception, unless that time is extended by mutual agreement of the Hospital and OPSEU.
- 15.06 An employee who is absent from work as a result of an illness or injury sustained at work and who has been awaiting approval of a claim for Worker's Compensation for a period longer than one complete pay period may apply to the Hospital for payment equivalent to the lesser of the benefit the employee would receive from Workers' Compensation if the employee's claim was approved, or the benefit to which the employee would be entitled under the short term sick portion of the disability income plan (HOODIP or equivalent plan). Payment will be provided only if the employee provides evidence of disability satisfactory to the Hospital and a written undertaking satisfactory to the Hospital that any payments will be refunded to the Hospital following final determination of the claim by The Workers' Compensation Board. If the claim for Workers' Compensation is not approved, the monies paid as an advance will be applied towards the benefits to which the employee would be entitled under the short term portion of the disability income plan. Any payment under this provision will continue for a maximum of fifteen (15) weeks.

The Hospital shall pay for such medical certificate(s) as it may require from timeto-time to certify an employee's illness or ability to return to work.

ARTICLE 16 - HOURS OF WORK & OVERTIME

16.01 Work Week and Work Day

(a) (Applicable to full-time employees only)

The normal or standard work week shall be an average of thirty-seven and one-half (37½) hours, with a normal or standard work day of seven and one-half (7½) hours except in those Hospitals where agreements already provide a standard or normal work week of less than thirty-seven and one-half (37½) hours per week and seven and one-half (7½) hours per day. (Those Hospitals with the lesser required hours shall reflect in the salary rates a pro-rata lesser amount compared with salaries for other Hospitals based on the ratio that the standard or normal hours of work at the Hospital concerned are to thirty-seven and one-half (37½) hours and shall appropriately reflect such hours in this Article).

The length of time over which the hours of work per week are to be averaged shall be determined locally and shall be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

(b) (applicable to part-time employees only)

The normal or standard work day shall be seven and one-half (7½) hours per day and the normal or standard full-time work week shall be an average of thirty-seven and one-half (37½) hours per week except in those hospitals where agreements already provide a normal or standard work day of less than seven and one-half hours and a normal or standard full-time work week of less than thirty-seven and one-half (37½) hours. (Those Hospitals with the lesser required hours shall reflect in the salary rates a pro-rata lesser amount compared with salaries for other Hospitals based on the ratio that the standard or normal hours work at the Hospital concerned are to thirty-seven and one-half (37½) hours and shall appropriately reflect such hours in this article.)

Part-time employees shall be entitled to overtime pay at the rate of time and one-half their regular straight time hourly rate for all hours worked in excess of the normal or standard work day or in excess of the normal or standard full-time work week.

The length of time over which the hours of work per week are to be averaged shall be determined locally and shall be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

(c) Where the Hospital and the Union agree, subject to the approval of the Ministry of Labour, other arrangements regarding hours of work may be entered into between parties on a local level with respect to tours beyond the normal or standard work day in accordance with the provisions set out in Article 25.01 of the collective agreement.

16.02 Rest Periods

(a) (applicable to full-time employees only)

Employees shall be entitled, subject to the exigencies of patient care, to relief periods during the shift on the basis of fifteen (15) minutes for each half shift.

(b) (applicable to part-time employees only)

Employees shall be entitled, subject to the exigencies of patient care, to relief periods during the shift on the basis of fifteen (15) minutes for each full half shift.

16.03 Overtime Definition

Overtime shall be defined as being all hours worked in excess of the normal or standard work day, or in excess of the normal or standard work week. The overtime rate shall be one and one-half (1½) times the regular straight time hourly rate of pay.

NOTE: Article 16.04 is applicable to full-time employees only.

16.04 Overtime/Call Back Accumulation

Where an employee has worked and accumulated approved overtime hours (other than overtime hours related to paid holidays) or has accumulated hours for Call Back up to a maximum, then such employee shall have the option of electing payment at the applicable overtime rate or time off equivalent to the applicable overtime rate (i.e. where applicable rate is one and one-half times, then time off shall be at one and one-half times). Where an employee chooses the latter option, such time off must be taken within the period set out in the Local Provisions Appendix, or payment in accordance with the former option shall be made. Further, such time off must be taken at a time mutually agreeable to the Hospital and employee.

The maximum for purposes of overtime/call back accumulation and the scheduling of time off shall be determined locally and shall be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

16.05 <u>Missed Meal Breaks</u>

(a) (applicable to full-time employees only)

If an employee is authorized to work, during the lunch break, due to the requirements of patient care, he will be paid time and one-half (1½) his regular straight time hourly rate for all time worked in excess of his normal daily hours.

(b) (applicable to part-time employees only)

If an employee is authorized to work, during the lunch break, due to the requirements of patient care, he will be paid his regular straight time hourly rate for all hours worked. Notwithstanding this provision, he will be paid time and one-half (1½) his regular straight time hourly rate for all time worked in excess of the normal or standard work day.

ARTICLE 17 - PREMIUM PAYMENTS AND TRANSPORTATION/MEAL ALLOWANCE

17.01 <u>Standby</u>

An employee required to standby or remain available for call-back duty on other than regular scheduled hours shall be paid at the rate of three dollars (\$3.00) per hour of standby time. Where such standby falls on any of the designated holidays listed in the collective agreement, the employee shall be paid at the rate of three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) per hour of standby time. Hours worked for call-back shall be deducted from hours for which the employee receives standby pay. However, an employee shall be entitled to a minimum of five dollars (\$5.00) for each eight hour period on standby even if called back to work.

NOTE: Article 17.02 is applicable to full-time and regular part-time employees only.

17.02 Call Back

An employee who is called to work after leaving the Hospital premises and outside of his regular scheduled hours, shall be paid a minimum of no less than four (4) hours' pay (except those Hospitals where 2½ or 3 hours is applicable; such hospitals shall appropriately reflect the applicable hours in this article) at time and one-half (1½) his regular straight time hourly rate for work performed on each call-in. In the event that such four (4) hour period overlaps and extends into his regular shift he will receive the four (4) hour guarantee payment at time and one half (1½) and his regular hourly rate for the remaining hours of his regular shift. The reference to leaving the Hospital premises referred to above will not be applicable where an employee remains in the Hospital on standby arrangement with the Hospital.

NOTE: Applicable to part-time employees only.

For purposes of clarification, Article 17.02 does not apply to prescheduled hours of work. Article 17.02 does not apply where the employee elects to work additional unscheduled hours made available by the Hospital.

17.03 Shift Premium

An employee shall be paid a shift premium of one dollar and twenty five cents (\$1.25) per hour for each hour worked which falls within the normal hours of the evening shift and one dollar and fifty (\$1.50) cents for each hour worked which falls within the normal hours of the night shift provided that such hours exceed two (2) hours if worked in conjunction with the day shift. For purposes of this provision, the normal or standard evening and night shift each consist of 7.5 hours. For those hospitals with lesser required hours as provided for in Article 16.01, the length of the evening and night shift will be adjusted accordingly. Shift premium will not form part of the employee's straight time hourly rate.

Effective April 1, 2007, the evening shift premium shall be increased to \$1.30 per hour and the night shift premium shall be increased to \$1.55 per hour. Effective April 1, 2008 the evening shift premium shall be increased to \$1.35 per hour and the night shift premium shall be increased to \$1.60 per hour.

17.04 (a) Weekend Premium

An employee shall be paid a weekend premium of one dollar and sixty-five cents (\$1.65) per hour for each hour worked between 2400 hours Friday to 2400 hours Sunday or such other 48 hour period that the Hospital may establish. If an employee is in receipt of premium payment pursuant to a local scheduling regulation with respect to consecutive weekends worked, he will not receive weekend premium under this provision.

Effective April 1, 2007, the weekend premium shall be increased to \$1.70 per hour and effective April 1, 2008 the weekend premium shall be increased to \$1.75 per hour.

(b)	The Hospital will endeavour to provide at least
	weekend(s) off in If an employee is required to work a
	consecutive weekend, the employee will be paid at the
	overtime rate for all hours worked on a consecutive
	weekend and any subsequent weekend until a weekend is scheduled off, save and except where:
	·

- (a) such weekend has been worked by an employee to satisfy specific days off requested by such employee, or
- (b) such employee has requested weekend work, or
- (c) such weekend is worked as a result of an exchange of shifts with another employee, or
- (d) any other reason as negotiated by the local parties and set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

Note: This section is only applicable to full-time employees. Where the local parties have language that applies to part-time employees then their language will continue to apply to part-time employees.

17.05 <u>Meal Allowance</u>

An employee who continues to work more than two (2) hours of overtime immediately following his scheduled hours of work, shall be provided with a meal voucher valued at a maximum of four dollars (\$4.00) or four dollars (\$4.00) if the Hospital is unable to provide a meal voucher.

17.06 Transportation Allowance

When an employee is required to travel to the Hospital, or to return to his home, as a result of being called back to work outside of his regularly scheduled hours, the Hospital will pay transportation costs either by taxi or by his own vehicle at the rate of (amounts to be determined locally and will be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix) or such greater amount that the Hospital may in its discretion determine for each trip. The employee will provide to the Hospital satisfactory proof of payment of such taxi fare.

17.07 Responsibility Pay

Where an employee is assigned temporarily to perform the duties and assume the responsibilities of a higher paying classification in or out of the bargaining unit, for one full shift or more, he shall be paid a premium equal to the greater of his next or last increment in his salary range for the duration of the assignment.

17.08 Time Off Between Shifts

Failure to provide the minimum number of hours between the commencement of an employee's scheduled shift and the commencement of such employee's next scheduled shift shall result in payment of one and one-half (1½) times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate for only those hours which reduce the minimum hour period.

Where the minimum period is reduced as a result of an approved change of shift(s) requested by the employee(s), such premium payment shall not apply.

The minimum number of hours for purposes of this Article shall be determined locally and will be set out in the Local Provisions Appendix.

17.09 Change of Schedule

(a) (applicable to full-time employees only)

Where an employee's schedule is changed by the Hospital with less than twenty-four (24) hours notice, she shall receive time and one-half (1½) of her regular straight time hourly rate for all hours worked on her next shift.

(b) (applicable to regular part-time employees only)

Where a regular part-time employee's scheduled shift is cancelled by the Hospital with less than twenty-four (24) hours notice, she shall receive time and one-half (1½) of her regular straight time hourly rate for all hours worked on her next shift.

17.10 No Pyramiding

Premium payment (including both overtime and holiday premium payment) shall be calculated and paid under one provision of this Agreement only, even though hours worked may be premium payment hours under more than one provision. In such circumstances the highest premium will be applied. The provision of this clause will not negate any entitlement to shift premium, call-back, standby, or weekend premium.

ARTICLE 18 - PAID HOLIDAYS

18.01 (a) (Applicable to full-time employees only)

The collective agreements shall provide twelve (12) paid holidays with appropriate payment to all employees, provided that the employee fulfils the qualifying conditions, if any, set out in the respective collective agreements. It is understood that the list of paid holidays may include a combination of designated and non-designated days such as float days, anniversary days, and birthdays.

New Years' Day Heritage Day (third Monday in February)

Good Friday Civic Holiday
Easter Monday Labour Day
Victoria Day Thanksgiving Day
Canada Day Christmas Day
Floating Paid Boxing Day

Holiday

(b) (Applicable to part-time employees only)

The collective agreements shall list twelve (12) holidays for purposes of payment for work performed on such holidays.

18.02 (a) (Applicable to full-time employees only)

An employee required to work on any of the designated holidays listed in the collective agreement shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1½) his regular straight time rate of pay for all hours worked on such holiday, subject to Article 18.03. In addition, he will receive a lieu day off with pay in the amount of his regular straight time hourly rate of pay times seven and one-half (7½) hours, except in those hospitals which have a standard work day of less than seven and one-half (7½) hours in which case holiday pay will be based on the standard daily hours in that hospital. The scheduling of lieu days shall be determined locally and shall be set out in the Appendix of Local Provisions.

(b) (Applicable to part-time employees only)

An employee required to work on any of the designated holidays listed in the collective agreement shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half his regular straight time rate of pay for all hours worked on such holiday, subject to Article 18.03.

Where the employee is required to work on a paid holiday for which he is paid at the rate of time and one-half (1½) his regular straight time hourly rate and is required to work additional hours following the full shift on that day (but not including hours on a subsequent regularly scheduled tour for such employee) he shall receive two (2) times his regular straight time hourly rate for such additional hours worked.

18.04 (Applicable to full-time employees only)

An employee who qualifies to receive pay for any holiday will not be entitled, in the event of illness, to receive sick pay in addition to holiday pay in respect of the same day.

ARTICLE 19 - VACATIONS

19.01 (a) (Article 19.01(a) is applicable to full-time employees only)

All employees who have completed less than one (1) year of continuous service shall be entitled to a vacation on the basis of 1.25 days per month for each completed month of service with pay in the amount of 6% of gross earnings.

All employees shall receive three (3) weeks vacation after one (1) year of continuous service, and four (4) weeks vacation after three (3) years of continuous service.

All employees shall receive five (5) weeks vacation after thirteen (13) years of continuous service.

All employees shall receive six (6) weeks vacation after twenty-two (22) years of continuous service.

An employee who has completed 30 years of continuous service shall be entitled to an additional five days' vacation, with pay.

An employee who has completed 35 years of continuous service shall be entitled to an additional five days of vacation, with pay.

(Clarification Note: The vacation schedule improvements for five weeks' vacation and six weeks' vacation shall be determined in accordance with whatever system is in place in the individual hospital for determining vacation entitlement. In other words, those hospitals that determine vacation entitlement by a uniform date for all employees shall continue to do so, and those that determine vacation entitlement by an anniversary date, or by some other means, shall continue to do so.

Notwithstanding the above, for employees who have not yet attained 30 years of continuous service as of June 28, 2005, the additional five days' vacation is to be banked on the employee's 30th anniversary date and taken prior to their 35 year anniversary date. Every employee who has attained their 30th or 35th anniversary date as of June 28, 2005, shall be entitled to have the full five (5) days vacation banked effective that date.)

Effective May 25, 2006, the above provisions for supplementary vacation at 30 and 35 years will be replaced by the following language:

All employees will receive seven (7) weeks vacation after twenty-eight (28) years of continuous service. For clarification, an employee will not be eligible to receive the seventh (7th) week of vacation where they have already received the additional five (5) days of supplemental vacation in the same vacation year.

(b) (Article 19.01(b) is applicable to regular part-time employees only)

All regular part-time employees shall be entitled to vacation pay based upon the applicable percentage provided in accordance with the vacation entitlement of full-time employees of their gross salary for work performed in the preceding year. Scheduling of vacations shall be in accordance with local scheduling provisions.

Equivalent years of service shall be used to determine vacation pay entitlement. Equivalent years of service shall be calculated on the basis of one (1) year of service for each 1650 hours worked.

Notwithstanding this provision, the calculation of service for purposes of vacation entitlement will include service accrued during a pregnancy leave or parental leave on the basis of seniority accrual during such leaves in accordance with Article 10.03 (a) (ii) of the agreement.

(Clarification Note: To clarify, effective June 28, 2005, supplemental vacation entitlement (equivalent to full-time employees' supplemental vacation entitlement at thirty (30) and thirty-five (35) years of service) shall be the equivalent of an additional 2% vacation pay increase for the full 1650 hours, paid to the employee for that equivalent year of service. The equivalent hours for the purpose of determining entitlement are at 49,500 hours and 57,750 hours of service. Local practice shall determine the method that this entitlement is paid.)

NOTE:

Employees hired prior to April 17, 1985 who are currently enjoying vacation benefits superior to those set out above shall continue to receive such superior benefits.

NOTE: Article 19.02 is applicable to full-time employees only.

19.02 Where an employee's scheduled vacation is interrupted due to serious illness or injury which commenced prior to and continues into the scheduled vacation period, the period of such illness shall be considered sick leave.

Where an employee's scheduled vacation is interrupted due to a serious illness requiring the employee to be an in-patient in a hospital, the period of such hospitalization shall be considered sick leave.

The portion of the employee's vacation which is deemed to be sick leave under the above provisions will not be counted against the employee's vacation credits.

19.03 Should an employee terminate with less than two weeks notice of termination, the vacation pay requirements of the Employment Standards Act will apply.

ARTICLE 20 - HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

NOTE: The provisions of Articles 20.01 to 20.03 with respect to Health and Welfare Benefits apply to full-time employees only.

20.01 The Hospital agrees to contribute towards the premium coverage of participating eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under the insurance plans as set out in Article 20.01 subject to their respective terms and conditions including any enrolment requirements. For newly hired employees, coverage as set out in Article 20.01 shall be effective the first billing date in the month following the month in which the employee was first employed subject to any enrolment or other requirements of the Plan. In no instance shall the first billing date for an employee occur later than the first day of the fourth full month following the month in which the newly-hired employee was first employed:

(a) Semi-Private Hospital Insurance

The Hospital agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the billed premiums towards coverage of eligible employees in the active employ of the Hospital under the Liberty Health Plan or comparable coverage with another carrier.

(b) Extended Health Care

The Hospital shall contribute on behalf of each eligible employee seventy-five percent (75%) of the billed premium under the Extended Health Care Plan (Liberty Health \$15-25 deductible plan including hearing aids with a maximum of the cost of acquisition once in every thirty-six (36) months per person and vision care with a maximum of \$200.00 every twenty-four (24) months per person, inclusive of one optometry exam, or its equivalent) provided the balance of the monthly premium is paid by employees through payroll deduction. Any Hospital currently paying more than seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium shall continue to do so. The drug formulary shall be as defined by Liberty Health Formulary Three.

Effective May 25, 2006, the Extended Health Care Plan shall be amended to provide for chiropractic, massage therapy and physiotherapy to a maximum of \$300 per insured person annually for each service.

Effective May 25, 2006, the Extended Health Care Plan shall be amended to provide for one (1) optometry exam every twenty-four (24) months (up to a \$50 maximum).

Effective May 25, 2006, the Extended Health Care Plan shall be amended to provide for the option to use the \$200 vision care toward the cost of laser surgery.

Effective May 25, 2006, the extended Health Care Plan shall be amended to provide for a deductable of \$22.50 (single) and \$35 (family).

Effective May 25, 2006, the extended Health Care Plan shall be amended to provide for a prescription drug dispensing fee cap of \$9 per prescription.

Effective May 25, 2006, the Extended Health Care Plan shall be amended to provide for mandatory generic drug substitution.

(c) Dental

The Hospital agrees to contribute seventy-five percent (75%) of the billed premiums towards coverage of eligible employees in the active employ of the hospital under the Liberty Health Dental Plan #9 (or its equivalent) based on the current ODA fee schedule provided the balance of the monthly premiums are paid by the participating employees through payroll deduction. Employees will be enrolled in the existing Plan in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan. The Plan shall provide for recall oral examination to be covered once every 9 months.

Orthodontic coverage will be included for participating employees on a 50/50 co-insurance basis, with a lifetime maximum of \$1,000 per insured person.

Effective May 25, 2006, orthodontic coverage shall provide for a lifetime maximum of \$1,500 per insured person.

The Dental coverage will include complete and partial dentures at 50/50 coinsurance to \$1,000 maximum per person annually, and crowns, bridge work and repairs at 50/50 co-insurance to \$1,000 maximum per person annually.

Effective May 25, 2006, crowns, bridgework and repairs coverage shall provide for \$1,500 per person annually.

(d) Group Life Insurance

The Hospital shall contribute one hundred percent (100%) toward the monthly premium of HOOGLIP or other equivalent group life insurance plan in effect for eligible full-time employees in the active employ of the Hospital on the eligibility conditions set out in the existing Agreements.

(e) Same Sex Partner Coverage

Coverage will be available to an employee and his or her same sex partner, and their dependants in accordance with the terms and conditions of the plans.

20.02 Change of Carrier

It is understood that the Employer may at any time substitute another carrier for any Plan (other than OHIP) provided the benefits are equivalent and are neither reduced or increased. The Employer shall provide to the Union full specifications of the benefit programs contracted for before implementation of any change.

20.03 Pension

All present employees enrolled in the Hospital's Pension Plan shall maintain their enrolment in the Plan subject to its terms and conditions. New employees and employees employed but not yet eligible for membership in the Plan shall, as a condition of employment, enrol in the Plan when eligible in accordance with its terms and conditions.

20.04 Divisible Surplus

The parties agree that any surplus, credits, refunds or reimbursements excluding sick leave and/or pension credits, under whatever name accrue to and for the benefit of the Hospital.

20.05Part-Time Benefits

A part-time employee shall receive in lieu of all fringe benefits (being those benefits to an employee, paid in whole or in part by the hospitals, as part of direct compensation or otherwise, including holiday pay, save and except salary, vacation pay, standby pay, call-in pay, responsibility pay, jury and witness duty, bereavement leave, and pregnancy and parental supplemental unemployment benefits) an amount equal to 14% of his regular straight time hourly rate for all straight time hours paid. For part-time employees who are members of the Hospital's pension plan the percentage in lieu of fringe benefits is twelve percent (12%).

20.06 Benefits on Lay-off

Employees who have been laid off are entitled to the Extended Health and Dental benefits. Employees will be able to buy those benefits at one hundred percent 100% employee cost. The employee will be responsible for making appropriate arrangements with the Hospital for payment of both the employer and employee portions of the premium costs. The employee will be able to access these benefits for a maximum of twelve (12) months from the date of their actual lay-off.

20.07 Benefits on Sick Leave

The Hospital will pay the employer portion of the benefit premiums while an employee is on sick leave, including the EI period prior to the commencement of long term disability and LTD, to a maximum of thirty (30) months from the date the absence began.

20.08Benefits for Early Retirees

The Hospital will provide to all employees who retire and have not yet reached age 65 and who are in receipt of the Hospital's pension plan benefits, semi-private, extended health care and dental benefits on the same basis as is provided to active employees, as long as the retiree pays the Employer the full amount of the monthly premiums in advance.

20.09Benefits Information

- (a) The Hospital shall provide each employee with access to information booklets outlining all of the current provisions in the benefit plans defined in Article 20.01. Upon request, the Hospital will make the Plan(s) available to the Union for inspection.
- (b) The Hospital shall notify the Union of the names(s) of the carrier(s) which provide the benefit plans defined in Article 20.01. The Hospital shall also provide the Union with access to all current information booklets provided to the employees.

20.10Benefits Age 65 and Older

Effective May 25, 2006, Semi-Private Hospital Insurance and Extended Health Care benefits will be extended to active full-time employees from the age of sixty-five (65), and up to the employee's seventieth (70th) birthday, on the same cost share basis as those employees under the age of sixty-five (65).

ARTICLE 21 - MODIFIED WORK

21.01 Modified Work

In order to facilitate a safe return to work, in compliance with the *Workplace Safety* and *Insurance Act*, the *Ontario Human Rights Code*, the collective agreement and other applicable legislation, the parties will endeavour to provide fair and consistent practices to accommodate employees who are ill, injured or permanently disabled.

21.02 Modified Work

Where the Hospital and the Union agree, the Hospital may implement modified/rehabilitative work programs in order to assist employees returning to work following illness or injury. To facilitate these programs, it is understood and agreed that provisions of the collective agreement may, where agreed, be varied. The specific terms of the program will be signed by the Hospital and the Union.

21.03 The parties agree that the issue of education on the topics of accommodation and modified work are appropriate agenda items for the Labour Management Committee.

ARTICLE 22 - CONTRACTING OUT

The Hospital shall not contract out work currently performed by members of this bargaining unit if, as a result of such contracting out, a layoff of any bargaining unit employees occurs. This clause will not apply in circumstances where the Hospital no longer provides particular services as a result of the rationalization or sharing of services between Hospitals in a particular geographic district, or as a result of the withdrawal of the Hospital's license to perform such services.

ARTICLE 23 - WORK OF THE BARGAINING UNIT

23.01 Supervisors or Managers excluded from the bargaining unit shall not perform duties normally performed by members in the bargaining unit which shall directly cause or result in the layoff, loss of seniority or service or reduction in benefits to members in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 24 - CONTINUING EDUCATION

- 24.01 The Hospital and the Union recognize that continuing education is important for all employees and that they have shared interests and responsibilities in ensuring equitable access to it. Therefore:
 - (i) The Local Parties will endeavour to maximize internal opportunities for training and development which may include but are not limited to: lunch hour programs, guest lecturers, trained employees training other employees, teleconferences, and access to in-house programs/seminars.
 - (ii) Continuing education opportunities will be communicated within the department(s). Where access to an opportunity is limited, the Hospital will identify pertinent selection criteria, terms of payment, etc. Decisions about continuing education opportunities will be made at the departmental level within the context of employee, Hospital, and department/program needs.
 - (iii) Where the employee requests it, the Hospital and the employee will jointly create an Annual Development Plan outlining continuing education goals and objectives.
 - (iv) In the event of dissatisfaction with the way in which continuing education decisions are made at the departmental level, the issue will be considered by a continuing education sub-committee of the Labour Management Committee. This sub-committee will consider opportunities, employee needs, Hospital needs and department/program requirements. The sub-committee may make recommendation(s) to the Hospital.

ARTICLE 25 – COMPENSATION

25.01

When a new classification in the bargaining unit is established by the Hospital, or the Hospital makes a substantial change in the job content of an existing classification, the Hospital shall advise the Union of such new or substantially changed classification and the rate of pay which is established. If so requested within thirty (30) calendar days of such advice, the Hospital agrees to meet with the Union to permit the Union to make representations with respect to the appropriate rate of pay, providing any such meetings shall not delay the implementation of the new or substantially changed classification. Where the Union challenges the rate established by the Hospital and the matter is not resolved following the meeting with the Union, the matter may be referred to arbitration in accordance with the arbitration provisions contained in this collective agreement, it being understood that any arbitration board shall be limited to establishing an appropriate rate based on the relationship existing among other classifications within the Hospitals (which are covered by the O'Shea award) and the duties and responsibilities involved. It is further understood and agreed that when determining the appropriate rate, primacy must be given to the relationship between job classifications covered by this collective agreement and that such relativity must be maintained. Each change in the rate established by the Hospital either through meetings with the Union or by a Board of Arbitration shall be retroactive from the time at which the new or substantially changed classification was first filled.

25.02

Claim for recent related experience, if any, shall be made in writing by the employee at the time of hiring on the application for employment form or otherwise. The employee shall cooperate with the Hospital by providing verification of previous experience.

Prior experience shall be credited at the rate of one (1) increment on the salary scale for every one (1) year of recent, related, full-time experience as determined by the Hospital.

For the purposes of this clause, as it applies to part-time employees, part-time experience will be calculated on the basis of 1650 hours worked equalling one (1) year of experience.

NOTE:

Where existing collective agreements have provisions for recent related experience credit superior to the above provisions, such provisions shall continue to be in effect.

(Article 25.03 is applicable to part-time employees only)

25.03 Part-time employees will accumulate service for purposes of progression on the salary grid, on the basis of one year of service for each 1650 hours worked.

Notwithstanding this provision, the calculation of service for purposes of progression on the salary grid will include service accrued during a pregnancy leave or parental leave on the basis of seniority accrual during such leaves in accordance with Article 10.03 (a)(ii) of the agreement.

- 25.04 Wage grids for those job classifications not covered by the Central wage grids are an appropriate subject matter for Local Negotiations. Notwithstanding the foregoing, those non-standard job classifications will receive general wage increases in accordance with the centrally negotiated agreement.
- 25.05 The salaries shall be as set out in Appendix 1 attached.

ARTICLE 26 - SUPERIOR BENEFITS

26.01 The Central Parties wish to encourage non-Participating Hospitals and Bargaining Units to join the central OPSEU and Participating Hospitals bargaining process.

Therefore, the parties agree:

- 1) a) Each of the Local Parties can retain up to three (3) conditions that exist in their current collective agreement that either party considers to be superior to the current Central Agreement. The parties will negotiate which items may be kept as Superior Conditions. Term may not be retained as a Superior Condition.
 - b) Should the Local Parties agree that wages is one of the Superior Conditions to be protected under this article, they must also address how future Centrally Negotiated wage increases apply to the Local Parties' Agreement. This determination of applicability of Centrally Negotiated future wage increases must be dealt with in these negotiations.
- 2) The Local Parties must agree to adopt Central Language in their collective agreement, with the exception of the agreed upon Superior Conditions (see 1 above).
- 3) The Superior Conditions will remain in force for a maximum period of the duration of the two Central Agreement terms following the expiry of the Central Agreement in force at the time that the Local Parties joined the Central Process.
- 4) The Local Parties have only one opportunity to join the Central Process with the protection of these Superior Conditions. Should they leave the Central Process and later rejoin, they will not have access to the same opportunity.
- 26.02 Existing rights, privileges, practices, terms or conditions of employment which may be considered to be superior to those contained herein shall be deemed not to continue in effect unless specifically retained by this agreement.
- 26.03 The following language will apply for hospitals and locals entering central bargaining following the 2006 round of bargaining and thereafter:
 - i) Prior to becoming a new participant in the central bargaining process, the local parties will hold negotiations to determine the content, if anything, of a superior condition appendix to the collective agreement. After these negotiations have concluded, the local parties

- will send a joint letter to the central parties with a copy of the agreement.
- ii) The local parties must agree to adopt central language in their collective agreement with the exception of the agreed upon superior conditions set out in their superior condition appendix.
- iii) The content of the superior conditions appendices are appropriate subject matter for both local and central negotiations. For clarity, the scope of these negotiations is only to reduce or eliminate the superior condition(s).
- iv) The local parties have only one opportunity to join the central process with the protection of their superior conditions. Should they leave the central process and later rejoin, they will not have access to this same opportunity.
- v) Existing rights, privileges, practices, terms of conditions of employment, which may be considered to be superior to those contained herein, shall be deemed not to continue in effect unless specifically retained by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 27 - MULTI-SITE ISSUES

Where multi-site/location operations currently exist, or are anticipated, either party may bring forward issues for local bargaining in accordance with the Memorandum of Conditions for Joint Bargaining. Where a new multi-site or location operation arises after the signing of the collective agreement, at the request of either party, the parties will enter into negotiations to effect an agreement to address multi-site/location issues.

Such an agreement may encompass issues that have traditionally been deemed to be Central, subject to approval by the Central Parties. The issues appropriate for local negotiation may include, but are not restricted to: the process used to determine who works where and when, transportation allowance, cost of transportation (including parking), travel time, definition of headquarters, job posting procedure, health and safety, union committees, standby, call back, and scheduling. The Local Parties may wish to use the Flexible Tours Model Agreement to address Hours of Work. Issues that are not appropriate for local negotiation are: Layoff and Recall, Hours of Work and Overtime (unless amended through the Model Agreement with respect to Innovative Scheduling/Flexible Scheduling Agreement).

Where the Local Parties are unable to negotiate an agreement on language that modifies central issues, the Central Parties will be invited to provide assistance. Where assistance from the Central Parties does not result in an agreement, and where the outstanding issues are only local in nature, the dispute will be resolved by mediation/arbitration. Where the matters in dispute are Central in nature, the manner of dispute resolution will be determined by the Central Parties.

28.01

A Central Repository of Job Openings in Participating Hospitals will be maintained and updated by OPSEU and posted on its Web Site. The Participating Hospitals will inform OPSEU, by way of e-mail or fax, of these job opportunities at the same time as they are posted at the hospital. This information will include the job requirements so employees viewing the listing can ascertain whether or not to make application. OPSEU members who are on lay off, or are in receipt of notice of layoff may apply to those vacancies.

These applications will be considered after the normal job posting procedure has been completed and no internal applicant has been selected.

If such an employee who applies through this process is selected, and accepts the position, such employee will transfer his accumulated service to the receiving Hospital for the purposes of placement on the wage grid and for vacation entitlement only. Placement on the wage or vacation grid means that the employee shall be placed at the same step in the grid the employee held in his previous position and shall progress through the grid thereafter on the basis of his service date from his former Hospital. It is understood that service for the purposes of determining seniority, and notice/severance under the Employment Standards Act, will be based upon the first day of employment with the receiving Hospital and will be governed by the terms of the receiving Hospital's collective agreement.

An employee changing Hospitals under this provision will be subject to the normal probationary period as outlined in the hiring Hospital's collective agreement (Article 10.01). During this probationary period the employee retains any right of recall he might have to his former Hospital. If for any reason the new employment relationship ceases during the probationary period the employee will return to his former status as a laid off employee of the former Hospital.

After the successful completion of the probationary period the employee forfeits any right of recall to his former Hospital. Any monies that may be owing to the employee as a result of his termination from his former place of employment will be the responsibility of the former Hospital.

ARTICLE 29 - MODEL SCHEDULING AGREEMENTS and PRE-PAID LEAVE

29.01 Extended Tours

Where the Hospital and the Union agree, subject to the approval of the Ministry of Labour, other arrangements regarding hours of work may be entered into between the parties on a local level with respect to tours beyond the normal or standard work day. The model agreement with respect to extended tour arrangements is set out below:

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Between: The Hospital -

And: The Ontario Public Service Employees Union (and its Local)

This Model Agreement shall be part of the Collective Agreement between the parties herein, and shall apply to the employees described in Article 1 of the Model Agreement.

Article 1 - Work Unit and Employees Covered

(Detailed and specific description of department and employees covered.)

Article 2 - Hours of Work

- 2.1 The normal or standard extended work day shall be hours per day.
- 2.2 (Detailed description with an attached schedule where appropriate.)
- 2.3 Failure to provide (_____) hours between the commencement of an employee's scheduled shift and the commencement of such employee's next scheduled shift shall result in payment of one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate for only those hours which reduce the (___) hour period. Where the (___) hour period is reduced as a result of an approved change of shift(s) requested by the employee(s), such premium payment shall not apply.

Article 3 - Overtime

- Overtime shall be defined as being all hours worked in excess of the normal or standard extended work day, as set out in Article 2.1 of the Model Agreement or in excess of the normal or standard work week as set out in Article 16.01 of the collective agreement.
- 3.02 For purposes of overtime the hours of work per week shall be averaged over weeks.

Article 4 - Rest Periods

4.01 Employees shall be entitled, subject to the exigencies of patient care, to relief periods during the shift on the basis of 15 minutes for each 3.75 hours worked.

Article 5 - Meal Periods

5.01 (The length of the meal period to be determined locally.)

Article 6 - Sick Leave and Long-Term Disability

(Applicable to Full-Time Employees Only)

6.01 The short-term sick leave plan will provide payment for the number of hours of absence according to the scheduled tour to a total of 562.5 hours. All other provisions of the existing plan shall apply mutatis mutandis.

Article 7 - Paid Holidays (Applicable to Full-Time Employees Only)

- 7.01 Holiday pay will be computed on the basis of the employee's regular straight time hourly rate of pay times the number of hours for a normal or standard work day as set out in Article 16.01(a).
- An employee required to work on any of the designated holidays listed in the collective agreement shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1½) his regular straight time rate of pay for all hours worked on such holiday, subject to Article 18.03. In addition, he will receive a lieu day off with pay in the amount of his regular straight time hourly rate of pay times seven and one-half (7½) hours, except in those hospitals which have a standard work day of less than seven and one-half (7½) hours in which case holiday pay will be based on the standard daily hours in that hospital.

Article 8 - Vacation

8.01 (Applicable to full-time only)

Vacation entitlement as set out in Article 19.01 (a) will be converted to hours on the basis of the employee's normal work week.

8.02 (Applicable to part-time only)

As set out in Article 19.01 (b) of the collective agreement.

Article 9 - Local Provisions

(Local provisions related to extended tours are to be set out in this Article and numbered in sequence.)

Term

This Agreement shall be (Specify Term).

Either party may, on written notice of (days, weeks) to the other party, terminate this Agreement notwithstanding the above specified term.

Dated this day of, 20	
For the Union	For the Hospital

29.02 Innovative/Flexible Scheduling

Where the Hospital and the Union agree, arrangements regarding Innovative Scheduling/Flexible Scheduling may be entered into between the parties on a local level. The model agreement with respect to such scheduling arrangements is set out below:

MODEL AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO INNOVATIVE SCHEDULING/FLEXIBLE SCHEDULING

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Between: The Hospital -

And: The Ontario Public Service Employees Union (and its Local)

This Model Agreement shall be part of the Collective Agreement between the parties herein, and shall apply to the employees described in Article 1 of the Model Agreement.

Article 1 - Work Unit and Employees Covered

(Detailed and specific description of department and employees covered.)

Article 2 - Hours of Work

(Scheduling arrangement to be set out in this Article.)

Article 3 - Agreed Variation From the Collective Agreement

(Collective Agreement provisions to be varied.)

Article 4 - Rest Periods

4.01 (a) Employees shall be entitled, subject to the exigencies of patient care, to relief periods during the shift on the basis of 15 minutes for each 3.75 hours worked.

Article 5 - Meal Periods

5.01 (The length of the meal period to be determined locally.)

Article 6 - Local Provisions

(Local provisions related to these scheduling arrangements are to be set out in this Article and numbered in sequence.)

Term

This Agreement shall be (Specify Term).

Either party may, on written notice of (days, weeks) to the other party, terminate this Agreement notwithstanding the above specified term.

Dated this day of, 20	
For the Union	For the Hospital

29.03 Job Sharing Arrangements

Where the Hospital and the Union agree, job sharing arrangements may be entered into between the parties on a local level. Job sharing is defined as an arrangement whereby two employees share the hours of work of what would otherwise be one full-time position. Subject to the provisions of Article 11, the position involved in the job sharing arrangement will be maintained as a full-time position in the Hospital's staffing complement.

The model agreement with respect to job sharing is set out below:

MODEL AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO JOB SHARING

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Between: The Hospital -

And: The Ontario Public Service Employees Union (and its Local)

This Model Agreement shall be part of the Collective Agreement between the parties herein, and shall apply to the employees described in Article 1 of the Model Agreement.

Article 1 - Work Unit and Employees Covered

(Detailed and specific description of department and employees covered.)

Article 2 - Hours of Work

(Scheduling and coverage arrangements to be set out in this Article.)

Article 3 - Status of Employees

The employees involved in a job sharing arrangement will be classified as regular parttime and will be covered by the provisions of the applicable Collective Agreement.

Article 4 - Introduction

(Introduction provisions to be set out in this Article.)

Article 5 - Discontinuance

(Discontinuance provisions to be set out in this Article. In preparing discontinuance language, the parties shall make provisions for a full-time employee who has transferred to a regular part-time position as part of a job sharing arrangement to have the first option of returning to that full-time position on the collapse of the arrangement.)

Dated this	s day of			_, 20					
FOR THE	UNION		F	FOR THE	HOSPIT	AL			
			_						
NOTE:	Employees	presently	covered	by a job	sharing	arrangement	shall be	subject	to its

NOTE: Employees presently covered by a job sharing arrangement shall be subject to its terms and conditions until such job sharing arrangement is discontinued.

29.04 <u>Pre-Paid Leave</u> (Effective Date: April 1, 1989)

(a) Purpose

The Pre-Paid Leave Plan is a plan developed to afford employees the opportunity to take a one (1) year leave of absence, funded solely by the employee through the deferral of salary over a defined period, in accordance with Part LXVIII of the <u>Income Tax Regulations</u>, Section 6801 (as may be amended from time to time).

(b) Application

Eligible employees must make written application to the Department Head, with a copy to the Director of Human Resources/Personnel, at least six (6) months prior to the intended commencement date of the salary deferral portion of the Pre-Paid Leave Plan. Such application will outline the reason the leave is being requested.

Priority will be given to applicants intending to use the leave to pursue formal education related to their profession. As between two (2) or more candidates, from the same department, with the same intended purpose seniority shall govern. The employee will be informed of the disposition of his application as soon as is reasonably possible after the closing date for applications.

(c) The total number of employees that may be accepted into the Pre-Paid Leave Plan in any one plan year as defined in Article 29.04(I) and from any one department shall be (number subject to local negotiations). Where there are more applications than spaces allotted, seniority shall govern subject to 29.04(b) above.

(d) Nature of Final Agreement

Final approval for entry into the pre-paid leave program will be subject to the employee entering into a formal agreement with the Hospital, authorizing the Hospital to make the appropriate deductions from the employee's pay. The agreement will also include:

- (a) A statement that the employee is entering the plan in accordance with Article 29.04 of the Collective Agreement.
- (b) The period of salary deferral and the period for which the leave is requested.
- (c) The manner in which the deferred salary is to be held.
- (d) The letter of application to enter the plan will be appended to, and form part of, the written agreement.

(e) Deferral Plan

The deferral portion of the plan shall involve an employee spreading four (4) years' salary over a five (5) year period, or such other schedule as may be mutually agreed between the employee and the Hospital. In the case of the four (4) years' salary over a five (5) year schedule, during the four (4) years of salary deferral, 20% of the employee's gross annual earnings will be deducted and held for the employee. Such deferred salary will not be accessible to the employee until the year of the leave or upon the collapse of the plan. In the case of another mutually agreed upon deferral schedule, the percentage of salary deferred shall be adjusted appropriately.

(f) <u>Deferred Earnings</u>

The manner in which the deferred salary is held shall be at the discretion of the Hospital. The employee will be made aware, in advance of having to sign any formal agreement, of the manner of holding such deferred salary.

Interest which is accumulated during each year of the deferral period shall be paid out to the employee in accordance with Part LXVIII of the <u>Income Tax Regulations</u>, Section 6801.

(g) Health and Welfare Benefits

All benefits shall be kept whole during the deferral period of the plan.

Full-Time Employees Only

Employees will be allowed to participate in health and welfare benefits plans during the year of the leave, but the full cost of such plans will be borne by the employees. Contributions to the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan will be in accordance with the Plan.

Notwithstanding the above, employees will not be eligible to participate in the disability income plan during the year of the leave.

(h) Seniority and Service

Full-Time Only

During the year of the leave, seniority shall continue to accumulate.

Service for the purposes of vacation and salary progression and other benefits will be retained but will not accumulate during the period of the leave.

(i) <u>Assignment on Return</u>

On return from leave, a participant will be assigned to his former position unless it is no longer available. In such a case the employee will be given a comparable job, if possible, or the layoff provisions will be applied.

(j) Withdrawal Rights

(i) A participant may withdraw from the plan at any time up to a date three (3) months prior to the commencement of the leave. Deferred salary, and accrued interest will be returned to the participant within a reasonable period of time.

(ii) On Leaving Employment

If a participant resigns, or is terminated, prior to the commencement of the leave, deferred salary plus interest will be returned to the participant within a reasonable period of time. In the event of the death of a participant, such funds will be paid to the participant's estate.

(k) Replacement Employees

The Hospital will endeavour to find a temporary replacement for the employee, as far in advance as practicable. If the Hospital is unable to find a suitable replacement, it may postpone the leave. If, after a period of postponement, a suitable temporary replacement cannot be found, the Hospital will have the option of considering a further

postponement or of collapsing the plan. The employee, subject to such a postponement, will have the option of remaining in the plan and rearranging the leave at a mutually agreeable time, or of withdrawing from the plan as outlined in Article 29.04(j).

(I) Plan Year

The year for the purposes of the plan shall be from September 1 of one year, to August 31, of the following year, or such other years as the parties may agree to.

(m) <u>Status of Replacement Employee</u>

Only the original vacancy resulting from an absence due to pre-paid leave will be posted.

Employees in bargaining units at the Hospital represented by OPSEU, selected to fill vacancies resulting from replacing an employee on a pre-paid leave need not be considered for other vacancies while replacing such employee. Upon completion of the leave, the replacing employee will be returned to his former position, and the filling of subsequent vacancies will likewise be reversed.

Employees newly hired to fill vacancies resulting from replacing an employee on pre-paid leave will not accrue seniority during the filling of such vacancies. Furthermore, such employees need not be considered for other vacancies. If such employees do post into permanent positions they will be credited with seniority from their last date of hire. The release or discharge of such employees will not be subject of a grievance or arbitration.

ARTICLE 30 – EMERGENCY SITUATIONS – LOCAL CONSULTATION

30.01 The parties agree to develop and establish a local consultation process to deal with future emergency situations of an unexpected nature that challenges the Hospital's ability to delivery safe health care and requires a temporary change to the Hospital's normal operating procedures. Such consultation shall include, but is not limited to, issues of redeployment and reassignment of staff (including voluntary reassignment of staff), planning of additional sessions of consultation, personal protective equipment, and the temporary waiver of terms of conditions of the collective agreement, as agreed to by the parties.

There shall be no loss of earnings, service or benefits for committee members attending the committee meetings. The total number of committee members shall be established at the local level.

<u>ARTICLE 31 – COST OF PRINTING</u>

31.01 The cost of printing the Collective Agreement will be shared equally by the Hospital and the Union.

- 32.01 This Agreement shall continue in effect until the 31st day of March, 2009 and shall continue automatically thereafter for annual periods of one year each unless either party notifies the other in writing that it intends to amend or terminate this Agreement in accordance with the following:
- In the event the parties to this Agreement agree to negotiate for its renewal through the process of central bargaining, either party may give notice to the other of its desire to bargain for the renewal of this Agreement within 120 days prior to the termination date of this Agreement. Negotiations on local matters shall take place during the period from 120 to 60 days prior to the termination date of this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that "local matters" means those matters which have been determined by mutual agreement between the central negotiating committees representing each of the parties to this Agreement as being subjects for local bargaining directly between the parties to this Agreement. It is also agreed that local bargaining shall be subject to such procedures as may be determined by mutual agreement between the central negotiating committees referred to above.
 - (b) In the event the parties to this Agreement do not agree to negotiate for its renewal through the process of central bargaining, either party may notify the other within the period from ninety days to sixty days preceding the expiry date of this Agreement that it desires to amend or terminate this Agreement. If notice of amendment or termination is given by either party, the other party agrees to meet for the purpose of negotiations within thirty (30) days after the giving of notice, if so requested.

It is further understood that the central negotiating committees will meet in the sixth month prior to the termination of this Agreement to convey the intentions of their principals as to participation in central negotiations, if any, and to determine the conditions for such central bargaining.

Proposals on central issues shall be exchanged by the central negotiating committees on a date set out in the Memorandum of Conditions for Joint Bargaining. Negotiations on central matters shall take place during the period commencing 90 days prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Signed at Toronto, Ontario the 30th day of April, 2006

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION	FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS
<u>"Yves Shank"</u>	John Cox
"Bob Reid"	James McCormick
"Brian Mitchell"	Nancy Davis
"Boris Prus"	Terry McMahon
"Leslie Sanders	Glen Dietz
"Marion Savory"	Diane Barbeau
<u>"Margaret Rafter"</u>	Randy Boudreau
<u>"Moya Beall"</u>	Sam Mandelbaum
"Michele Dawson Haber"	Steve Shemluck
	Caroline Van Kessel

Joint Central Committee on Health & Safety

In recognition of the shared interest by Hospitals and OPSEU in employee health and safety the parties will establish a central Committee to gather information, discuss and make recommendations on the health and safety of OPSEU represented employees in the workplace. The Committee will be comprised of equal representation from the OHA and OPSEU.

The parties will invest in this Committee the authority and, on a cost shared basis, the funds it needs to fulfil its mandate. Specifically, the mandate of the Committee may include, but is not limited to, the following:

- The parties will identify, gather and analyze the information they require to discuss the health and safety risks to employees in the workplace, which may include the commissioning of a study;
- The use of experts in health and safety, if required;
- Make recommendations to the OHA's Health and Safety Advisory Committee on industry health and safety initiatives (e.g. training programs, best practices, etc...);
- The Committee will consist of two members from each party (not including staff members) for a total of four members and will meet on a quarterly basis.
- The parties agree that the Union members on the committee shall suffer no loss of earnings for time spent during their regularly scheduled working hours in attending committee meetings.

The parties will meet within 90 days of the ratification of the Memorandum of settlement to agree on the work of the Committee, including costs, and other items as deemed appropriate by the parties.

FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS

Signed at Toronto, Ontario, the 29th day of March, 2003

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC

SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION		
Yves Shank	Marion Walsh	
Patty Rout	Sam Mandelbaum	
Leslie Sanders		
Robby Hersh		
Moya Beall		

Safety Engineered Sharps

The parties agree that it is desirable to reduce sharps injuries and direct the parties at the local level to discuss the introduction of safety engineered sharps.

Signed in Toronto this 5th day of November 2004.

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION

FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS

M. Beall Y. P. Shank A.M. Pesce Anne Mandino

OPSEU Joint Trusteed Benefit Fund

During the most recent round of central collective bargaining between OPSEU and the Participating Hospitals the parties agreed they would recommend to hospitals that when they tender their group benefit plans, they invite the OPSEU Joint Trusteed Benefit Fund to make a proposal on their health and welfare benefit plans.

The parties agree that the OPSEU Joint Trusteed Benefit Fund may represent a cost effective source for some Hospitals and their employees in the provision of group insurance benefits as set out in the collective agreement. In addition, the Trust Fund can provide group insurance benefits for non-OPSEU groups in your hospital tailored to your own specifications.

The Trust Fund operates as a large buying group governed by a joint board of Employer and Union Trustees. The governance structure of the Trust Fund is similar to that of the Hospitals of Ontario Pension Plan.

You are encouraged to contact:

Mr. Bill Mathison
Executive Director

OPSEU Joint Trusteed Benefit Fund

156 Duncan Mill Road, Unit 7
North York, Ontario

M3B 3N2

(416) 443-9223

During a presentation to the union and the hospitals negotiation team, a representative of the OPSEU Trusteed Benefit Fund identified that their organization operates independently from OPSEU and has a policy of confidentiality with respect to inquires from either employers or unions.

He can provide you with more information and will be pleased to come to your Hospital and give a more detailed presentation on the Fund or provide your Hospital with a quote for your benefits.

Signed in Toronto this 25th day of May, 2006

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION

FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS

Yves Shank John Cox

Moya Beall Steve Shemluck

Part-time Voluntary Benefits

If the local parties agree, the Hospital will provide part-time employees with the option of voluntary participation in any and all of the group health and welfare benefit programs set out in Article 20.01. It is understood and agreed that the part-time employees would pay the Employer the full amount of the monthly premiums, in advance.

NOTE: Part-time voluntary benefits are not arbitrable in local negotiations.

Signed in Toronto this 25th day of May, 2006.

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION

FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS

Yves Shank Moya Beall John Cox Steve Shemluck

Integration for the Delivery of Health Services

The Participating Hospitals and OPSEU are determined to minimize the adverse impact of integration on employees. The parties agree that a standardized approach to Human Resources Adjustment Planning should be used. For this reason, OPSEU and the Participating Hospitals support the development of provincial standards or principles as described in the Joint Hospital Industry Labour Management Council letter to the Ministers of Health and Labour, dated March 23, 2006.

For the purposes of this letter of understanding, the parties agree that "integrate", "integration". And "health service provider" have the same meaning as defined in Bill 36, an Act To Provide For The Integration Of The Local System For The Delivery Of Health Services. Throughout this document, the words rationalization, consolidation or integration may be used interchangeably.

In the event of a rationalization of any part of the service of the Hospital with those of another hospital or hospitals, the Hospital and the Union agree to be guided by the following principles:

- (a) the Hospital shall notify affected employees and the union as soon as a formal decision to rationalize or integrate is taken;
- (b) the Hospital shall provide the Union with pertinent financial and staffing information and a copy of any reorganization plans which impact on the bargaining unit related to the rationalization of services.
- (c) the Hospital and the Union shall begin discussions concerning the specifics of the rationalization forthwith after a decision to rationalize is taken;
- (d) as soon as possible in the course of developing a plan for the implementation of the rationalization the Hospital shall notify affected employees and the Union of the projected staffing needs, and their location, which are anticipated to result; notice to affected employees and the Union shall include the estimated number and types of positions anticipated to be available, and their location, as the result of the rationalization;
- (e) if services in the Hospital are to be reduce or eliminated as the result of a rationalization, or if the employment of employees is otherwise to be affected, the Hospital shall prepare a list of the affected employees in order of seniority by jobs for which it considers such employees are eligible. This list will be updated to reflect any changes due to employees leaving or entering the unit;
- (f) if a rationalization is anticipated to result in a loss of employment for employees at another hospital by reason of the establishment of a new unit or department or the enlargement or extension of services at the Hospital:

i) in the period before a rationalization takes place, where a permanent vacancy

occurs and has not been filled after Article 13.01 has been compiled with, the

vacancy shall be filled by the senior qualified employee of the other hospital

who wishes to make an early transfer. An employee taking such a position

shall be treated as a transferring employee and not as a new hire;

- when the rationalization takes place, and when employees formerly employed by the other hospital or hospitals involved are transferred to the Hospital, such employees shall maintain their seniority dates and shall be placed on seniority lists at the Hospital accordingly. Thereafter they shall exercise seniority righs in accordance with this agreement. Following implementation of the rationalization, no employee who has been transferred to the Hospital shall suffer a reduction in wages. If the wage grid in effect at the Hospital does not correspond to the gird in effect at the hospital at which such employees were formerly employed, employees whose wages were not identical to a wage step on the Hospital's grid shall be moved to the next higher step. Where the transferring employee's salary exceeds the range maximum, the employee's salary will be red circled;
- employees who have been transferred to the Hospital shall be subject to the benefit plans of the Hospital in the manner provided under the collective agreement. The retention, modification or abandonment of pre-existing grandfathered benefits and the provisions of sick leave plans, to which employees who have been transferred to the Hospital were formerly subject, shall be negotiated between the Union and the Hospital. Employees who have been transferred to the Hospital shall retain their former level of vacation entitlement or shall be entitled to the level provided by this agreement, whichever is the greater;
- iv) hours of work shall be those of the Hospital;
- v) an employee who has been transferred to the Hospital and who has not completed her or his probationary period at the Hospital where she or he was formerly employed shall receive credit for her or his service during such probationary period, and shall complete the balance of the probationary period required by this agreement. No new probationary period shall be served by an employee who has been transferred to the Hospital.
- (g) Employees who are relocated or transferred to another employer by the Hospital will retain their seniority and service at their original hospital for a 24-month period. Employees relocated or transferred shall have the right to post for vacancies that arise, prior to or subsequent to the relocation or transfer, at their originating Hospital for that 24 month period. If they are the successful applicant, they will return to the employ of the Hospital with seniority accrued and service intact but not accrued, for the period that the employee was relocated or transferred to another employer.
- (h) Nothing in the foregoing shall be deemed to limit or restrict the parties rights and obligations under the Labour Relations Act, 1995 or the Act To Provide For The Integration Of The Local System For The Delivery Of Health Services (Bill 36), as may be amended from time to time.
- (i) The parties may also wish to refer to the Service Rationalization/Employee Transfer Guidelines established by the Ontario Hospital Industry Labour Management Committee in 1986.

Signed in Toronto this 25th day of May, 2006

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION

FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS

Yves Shank Moya Beall John Cox Steve Shemluck

Letter of Understanding

Full-time, Regular Part-time, Casual Part-time and Temporary Employees

The parties agree that while definitions remain a Central issue, for the purposes of this round the parties at the local level may negotiate definitions for full-time, regular part-time, casual part-time and temporary employees.

Signed in Toronto this 30th day of March 2006.

FOR ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION

FOR THE PARTICIPATING HOSPITALS

Yves Shank Moya Beall John Cox Steve Shemluck

OPSEU WAGE SCHEDULE					
2005 Ju					
JOB	STEP				
	PAY	Expired	2006 APR 01	2007 APR 01	2008 APR 01
CHIEF PERFUSIONIST	1	38.140	39.280	40.460	41.770
	2	39.920	41.120	42.350	43.730
	3	41.680	42.930	44.220	45.660
	5	43.440 45.370	44.740 46.730	46.080 48.130	47.580 49.690
	6	48.420	49.870	51.370	53.040
	0	40.420	49.870	31.370	33.040
CARDIOVASCULAR PERFUSIONIST	1	24.050	25.070	26 420	27 200
	3	34.050	35.070	36.120	37.290
	4	35.640 37.210	36.710 38.330	37.810 39.480	39.040 40.760
	5	38.790	39.950	41.150	42.490
	6	40.390	41.600	42.850	44.240
	7	43.230	44.530	45.870	47.360
CHARGE TECHNOLOGIST	3				
CHG. ULTRASOUND TECHNOLOGIST	4	29.940	30.840	31.760	32.800
CHG. MRI TECHNOLOGIST	5	31.130	32.060	33.030	34.100
CHG. RESPIRATORY THERAPIST	6	32.330	33.300	34.300	35.410
CHG. REG. VASCULAR TECHNOLOGIST	7	33.510	34.520	35.550	36.710
	8	34.720	35.760	36.830	38.030
	9	35.890	36.970	38.080	39.310
	10	38.220	39.370	40.550	41.870
CHARGE TECHNOLOGIST	3				
CHG. REG. RADIOLOGY TECHNOLOGIST	4	29.940	30.840	31.760	32.800
CHG. MEDICAL LAB TECHNOLOGIST	5	31.130	32.060	33.030	34.100
CHG. NUCLEAR MED. TECHNOLOGIST	6	32.330	33.300	34.300	35.410
	7	33.510	34.520	35.550	36.710
	8	34.720	35.760	36.830	38.030
	9	35.890	36.970	38.080	39.310
	10	37.110	38.220	39.370	40.650
CHARGE BIOMEDICAL TECHNOLOGIST	1	29.940	30.840	31.760	32.800
	2	31.130	32.060	33.030	34.100
	3	32.330	33.300	34.300	35.410
	4	33.510	34.520	35.550	36.710
	5	34.720	35.760	36.830	38.030
	6	35.890	36.970	38.080	39.310
	7	37.110	38.220	39.370	40.650

OPSEU WAGE SCHEDU					
2005 Jur					
JOB	STEP				
	PAY	Expired	2006 APR	2007 APR	2008 APR
	.,	Exp. oa	01	01	01
				.	0.1
SENIOR TECHNOLOGIST					
SENIOR SONOGRAPHER	3				
SENIOR MRI TECHNOLOGIST	4	28.330	29.180	30.060	31.030
SENIOR RESPIRATORY THERAPIST	5	29.460	30.340	31.250	32.270
SENIOR REG. VASCULAR TECHNOLOGIST	6	30.600	31.520	32.460	33.520
	7	31.710	32.660	33.640	34.730
	8	32.860	33.850	34.860	35.990
	9	33.960	34.980	36.030	37.200
	10	36.160	37.240	38.360	39.610
SENIOR TECHNOLOGIST					
SENIOR RADIOLOGICAL TECHNOLOGIST	3				
SENIOR NUC. MEDICINE TECHNOLOGIST	4	28.330	29.180	30.060	31.030
SENIOR MRT-INTERVENTIONAL	5	29.460	30.340	31.250	32.270
SENIOR MED. LAB. TECHNOLOGIST	6	30.600	31.520	32.460	33.520
	7	31.710	32.660	33.640	34.730
	8	32.860	33.850	34.860	35.990
	9	33.960	34.980	36.030	37.200
	10	35.110	36.160	37.250	38.460
	10	00.110	00.100	07.200	00.100
SENIOR BIOMEDICAL TECHNOLOGIST					
	1	28.330	29.180	30.060	31.030
	2	29.460	30.340	31.250	32.270
	3	30.600	31.520	32.460	33.520
	4	31.710	32.660	33.640	34.730
	5	32.860	33.850	34.860	35.990
	6	33.960	34.980	36.030	37.200
	7	35.110	36.160	37.250	38.460
	•	00.110	00.100	07.200	00.100
REGISTERED TECHNOLOGIST			1		
ULTRASONOGRAPHER	1				
MRI TECHNOLOGIST	2	24.700	25.440	26.200	27.060
REGISTERED VASCULAR TECHNOLOGIST	3	25.660	26.430	27.220	28.110
CARDIAC ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY TECHNOL.	4	26.730	27.530	28.360	29.280
RESPIRATORY THERAPIST	5	27.800	28.630	29.490	30.450
	6	28.860	29.730	30.620	31.610
	7	29.930	30.830	31.750	32.780
	8	30.990	31.920	32.880	33.950
	9	32.040	33.000	33.990	35.100
	10	34.120	35.140	36.200	37.370
	10	U-T. 12U	55.140	55.200	01.010
	†				

OPSEU WAGE SCHEDULE					
	2005 June 28				
JOB	STEP				
	PAY	2006 JUNE 26			
PHYSICS TECHNICIAN	1	26.120			
ELECTRONICS TECHNOLOGIST	2	27.351			
	3	27.883			
	4	28.845			
	5	30.143			
	6	31.821			
	7	33.934			
DOSIMETRIST	1	26.588			
RADIATION THERAPIST	2	27.395			
	3	28.639			
	4	30.192			
	5	31.734			
	6	33.286			
	7	36.273			

OPSEU WAGE SCHEDULE					
2005 Ju					
JOB	STEP				
	PAY	Expired	2006 APR 01	2007 APR 01	2008 APR 01
REGISTERED TECHNOLOGIST					
MED. RADIOLOGICAL TECHNOLOGIST	1				
SPECIAL PROC. TECHNOLOGIST	2	24.700	25.440	26.200	27.060
MEDICAL LAB. TECHNOLOGIST	3	25.660	26.430	27.220	28.110
NUCLEAR MED. TECHNOLOGIST	4	26.730	27.530	28.360	29.280
PATHOLOGY ASSISTANT	5	27.800	28.630	29.490	30.450
MAMMOGRAPHY TECHNOLOGIST	6	28.860	29.730	30.620	31.610
	7	29.930	30.830	31.750	32.780
	8	30.990	31.920	32.880	33.950
	9	32.040	33.000	33.990	35.100
	10	33.120	34.110	35.140	36.280
BIOMEDICAL TECHNOLOGIST	1	24.700	25.440	26.200	27.060
BIOMEDICAL TECHNOLOGICT	2	25.660	26.430	27.220	28.110
	3	26.730	27.530	28.360	29.280
	4	27.800	28.630	29.490	30.450
	5	28.860	29.730	30.620	31.610
	6	29.930	30.830	31.750	32.780
	7	30.990	31.920	32.880	33.950
	8	32.040	33.000	33.990	35.100
	9	33.120	34.110	35.140	36.280
		331.23		3311.13	33.233
		07.740	00.000		07.070
TECHNICIAN 5 SENIOR	1	25.540	26.300	27.090	27.970
Senior EEG Technician 5	2	26.510	27.310	28.130	29.040
	3	27.490	28.310	29.160	30.110
	4	28.450	29.300	30.180	31.160
	5	29.400	30.290	31.200	32.210
TECHNICIAN 5	1	24.090	24.810	25.560	26.390
SENIOR TECHNICIAN	2	25.010	25.760	26.530	27.400
EEG TECHNICIAN I	3	25.930	26.710	27.510	28.400
EMG TECHNICIAN	4	26.840	27.650	28.470	29.400
	5	27.740	28.570	29.430	30.390
TECHNICIAN 4	1	22.760	23.440	24.150	24.930
LAB. TECH II	2	23.620	24.330	25.060	25.870
SIU TECHNICIAN	3	24.470	25.200	25.960	26.800
RETINAL PHOTOGRAPHER	4	25.360	26.120	26.900	27.780
OPHTHALMIC TECHNICIAN	5	26.210	27.000	27.810	28.710
X-O-MAT TECHNICIAN		20.210	27.000	27.010	20.710
ULTRASOUND VASCULAR TECHNICIAN					
OLITAGOORD VAGOOLAR TEORINICIAN			1		

OPSEU WAGE SCHEDU						
2005 June 28						
JOB	STEP					
	PAY	Expired	2006 APR 01	2007 APR 01	2008 APR 01	
TECHNICIAN 3 CHARGE	1	22.910	23.600	24.310	25.100	
CHARGE PHARMACY TECHNICIAN	2	23.780	24.490	25.220	26.040	
OTHER CENTRAL CONTROL OF THE OTHER CONTROL	3	24.660	25.400	26.160	27.010	
	4	25.530	26.300	27.090	27.970	
	5	26.410	27.200	28.020	28.930	
TECHNICIAN 3	1	20.450	21.060	21.700	22.400	
AUTOPSY TECHNICIAN	2	21.240	21.880	22.530	23.270	
PHARMACY TECHNICIAN	3	22.010	22.670	23.350	24.110	
ECG TECHNICIAN III	4	22.800	23.480	24.190	24.970	
LAB. ASSISTANT	5	23.570	24.280	25.010	25.820	
*SENIOR ECG TECHNICIAN						
* Plus dollar differential of \$1.00 per hour						
TECHNICIAN 2	1	19.150	19.720	20.320	20.980	
PHLEBOTOMIST	2	19.870	20.470	21.080	21.770	
MEDICAL RECORDS TECHNICIAN	3	20.600	21.220	21.850	22.560	
INVENTORY MANAGEMENT TECHNICIAN	4	21.330	21.970	22.630	23.360	
HEALTH RECORD TECHNICIAN	5	22.050	22.710	23.390	24.150	

*NOTE:

TECHNICIAN 1 = Lab Aide/Clerk, Audio-Visual Assistant, Darkroom Technician

TECHNICIAN 2 = Phlebotomist, Medical Records Technician, Orthotic/Prosthetic Technician, Media Maker, OR Technician, OT/PT Aides.

TECHNICIAN 3 = Non-Certified EEG/EMG/ENG/ECHO Technician, ECG Technician, Lab Assistant, Morgue Attendant/Technician, Pharmacy Technician/Assistant

TECHNICIAN 4 = Non-Registered Technologist, Audio-Visual Technician, Dental Technician/Assistant, Technician (Cardio-Pulmonary, Audiology, Opthalmic, Orthopaedic, Doppler Flow, Retinal Photographer)

TECHNICIAN 5 = Autopsy Master, Certified EEG/EMG/ENG/ECHO* Technician, Kinesiologist**, Physical Fitness/Health Maintenance Worker

^{*} Echocardiographer to be moved to Ultrasonographer grid effective June 28, 2005

^{**} Kinesiologist to be moved to BSW grid effective June 28, 2005

APPENDIX II - LOCAL PROVISIONS

ARTICLE A - SCOPE AND RECOGNITION

A.01 The Employer recognizes the Union as the bargaining agent for all Paramedical employees including Technologists, Technicians, Assistants, Perfusionists and Respiratory Therapist employed by Kingston General Hospital save and except supervisors and those above such rank, students in training, students employed after regular school hours, or during the university or school vacation, persons employed through grant funding (excluding Registered Technologists) and classifications covered by existing collective agreements.

ARTICLE B - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- B.01 Subject to the right of any employee who feels that he has been unjustly treated to lodge a grievance in the manner hereinafter provided, (Article 8) the Union agrees to cooperate with the Employer at all times to maintain discipline and to maintain the highest possible standard of service and efficiency and the Union acknowledges the exclusive rights of the Employer as follows:
 - (a) To direct the operation of the Hospital in the best interest of the patients, the community and the employees, both within and without the bargaining unit.
 - (b) To formulate policies, rules and regulations which are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Agreement.
 - (c) To introduce new practices or services, to expand, reduce, eliminate, change or modify present services and practices; to enter into contracts for buildings, repairs, equipment, supplies, materials and services.
 - (d) To determine where, by whom, in what manner, to what time and under what conditions, employees in the bargaining unit and/or contractors and their employees shall perform their duties.
 - (e) To determine in the interest of efficient operation and highest standard of service, the hours of work, work assignments, methods of doing the work and working establishment for any service, provided always that reasonable notice shall be given to the employee or employees involved of any changes to be made.
 - (f) To hire, promote, transfer, maintain order and discipline, demote, suspend, discharge, or otherwise discipline employees, who have completed the probationary period under Article 10.01, for just cause.

- (g) To instruct and direct employees in their duties, responsibilities, conduct and attitudes towards patients, visitors, department heads, supervisors and other Hospital employees who are outside the bargaining unit.
- (h) To have absolute control of buildings, use of buildings, use of utensils, equipment, machinery, tools, supplies, materials, insurance, drugs and medicine and of clothing, uniforms, and all other articles or things belonging to the Employer.
- (i) The discharge of a probationary employee is not the subject matter of a grievance unless the probationary employee is discharged for exercising a right under this collective agreement.

<u>ARTICLE C – REPRESENTATION AND COMMITTEES</u>

Re: Article 6.01

C.01 UNION STEWARDS

The number of stewards for Local 444 shall not be more than twenty (20). The number of stewards absent from any area or service to perform union duties is subject to operational requirements.

Upon completion of the OLRB hearing and subject to additional members being added to the bargaining unit the parties will meet to determine a proportional addition to the number of stewards.

Re: Article 6.02

C.02 GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Hospital will recognize a grievance committee comprised of four (4) members to be elected or appointed from the bargaining unit. One member shall be chairman. The purpose of the committee is to deal with grievances as set out in this Collective Agreement.

Re: Article 6.04 (a)

C.03 NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE

The Hospital agrees to recognize a negotiating committee comprised of five (5) members to be elected or appointed from the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE D - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Re: Article 14.02 (a)

D.01 <u>LOCAL UNION BUSINESS LEAVE</u>

Where an employee is aware of the need for such leave at least four (4) weeks prior to the date requested, a written request will be submitted to the immediate supervisor. A response will be provided in writing within ten (10) calendar days of the request being submitted. In any event not less than two (2) weeks notice will be provided, except in extenuating circumstances. There shall be no more than ten (10) employees away, in total at any one time. The number of employees that may be away at any one time will be subject to the operational requirements of the Hospital. Such requests shall not be unreasonably denied.

Re: Article 14.07

D.02 PREPAID LEAVE

The total number of employees that may be accepted into the Pre-Paid Leave Plan in any one (1) plan year as defined in Article 29.04 (I) shall be eleven (11). The maximum number from any one (1) department shall be as outlined below. Where there are more applications than spaces allotted, seniority shall govern subject to 29.04 (b).

(This definition of departments is specific for the purposes of the Pre Paid Leave Plan and is without prejudice).

<u>DEPARTMENT</u>	MAXIMUM NUMBER
Core Laboratory Services	two (2)
Pathology Services	one (1)
Microbiology Services	one (1)
Genetic Services	one (1)
Imaging Services	two (2)
Respiratory Services	one (1)
Pharmacy Services	one (1)
All other Departments	two (2)

(No more than one (1) from any one area or service – applies to "All other Departments")

Notwithstanding the above, where approval of such numbers would create undue hardships to the department or the hospital, such numbers may be reduced or re-deployed accordingly.

ARTICLE E - SICK LEAVE AND LONG-TERM DISABILITY (FULL-TIME)

Re: Article 15.00

E.01 <u>CLAIM FOR WORKERS' COMPENSATION</u>

Where an employee fails to file a claim in accordance with the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act (WSIA), or having done so, is not eligible for W.S.I.A. Compensation, she shall receive sick pay if unused credits are available.

E.02 SICK LEAVE NOTIFICATION

- (a) Employees taking ill or suffering an accident during working hours will notify their immediate supervisor or designate before leaving their duties, subject to the applicable provisions of the W.S.I.B.
- (b) Where the illness takes place at times other than the employee's normal working hours, the employee will notify her immediate supervisor or designate as soon as possible and in any case not later than one (1) hour before the scheduled day shift and four (4) hours before the evening shift and four (4) hours before the night shift.
- (c) In the matter of all sick leaves, employees shall contact their immediate supervisor or designate on the first day of absence to indicate approximately when they expect to resume duty.
- (d) Employees shall contact their immediate supervisor or designate on each subsequent day they are off sick during normal working hours to inform their supervisor if they will return to work on the next day or not, unless the employee is off on a long term illness and they have communicated this to their supervisor.

ARTICLE F- HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME (FULL TIME & PART TIME)

Re: Article 16.01 (a)

F.01 WORK WEEK AND WORK DAY (FULL TIME & PART TIME)

The averaging period for hours of work will be seventy-five (75) hours in a two (2) week period.

Re: Article 16.04

F.02 OVERTIME ACCUMULATION (FULL TIME & PART TIME)

Where an employee has worked and accumulated approved overtime hours (other than overtime hours related to paid holidays) up to a maximum of five (5) day's accumulation, then such employees shall have the option of electing payment at the applicable overtime rate or time off equivalent to the applicable overtime rate (i.e. Where applicable rate is one and one-half times, then time off shall be at one and one-half times). Where an employee chooses the latter option, such time off must be taken by March 31 of the following calendar year in which it was earned or payment in accordance with the former option shall be made.

Subject to the scheduling of requests for vacation received prior to February 1st, requests for time off under this article shall be considered on a first come first served basis. Such requests shall be made in writing as far in advance as possible except in extenuating circumstances. A response to such request will be provided within a maximum of fourteen (14) calendar days.

F.03 SCHEDULING (FULL TIME AND PART TIME)

The employer will endeavour to post a four (4) week schedule indicating the hours and days of work of each employee. The schedule will be posted in an appropriate place at least four (4) weeks in advance of the commencement of the schedule.

F.04 NUMBER OF CONSECUTIVE WORK DAYS (FULL-TIME & PART-TIME)
The Hospital shall arrange schedules so that no employee will be scheduled for more than seven (7) consecutive days without two (2) consecutive days off except where this maximum (7 shifts) is exceeded as a result of an approved change of shift(s) requested by the employee(s).

F.05 NUMBER OF WEEKENDS WORKED (FULL-TIME ONLY)

Re: Article 17.04 (b)

The Hospital will endeavour to provide at least one (1) weekend off in two (2). If an employee is required to work a third consecutive weekend, the employee will be paid at the overtime rate for all hours worked on a third consecutive weekend and any subsequent weekend until a weekend is scheduled off, save and except when:

- (a) such weekend has been worked by an employee to satisfy specific days off requested by such employee or,
- (b) such employee has requested weekend work, or
- (c) such weekend is worked as a result of an exchange of shifts with another employee, or
- (d) inclusive of December 15 to January 15, employees shall not be required to work more than three (3) consecutive weekends. This exception will be used only subject to operational needs.

F.06 HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME (PART-TIME ONLY)

The aforementioned hours of work shall not be construed as a guarantee of any minimum or as a restriction of any maximum number of hours to be worked.

F.07 SCHEDULING (PART-TIME ONLY)

(a) Regular Part-time employees shall receive a reasonably equal distribution of shifts on the posted work schedule in each unit or area.

- (b) Regular Part-time employees shall be regularly employed for not more than twenty-four (24) hours per week.
- (c) Regular Part-time employees in a unit or area shall be offered additional shifts before such shifts are offered to casual part-time employees in a unit or area.
- (d) Additional shifts shall be offered by seniority, to employees who have indicated to management that they are available, so as to bring the most senior, available, qualified employee up to the hour level specified in Article F.06 (b). Unavailability for any additional shift shall count as a shift worked for the purpose of maintaining the distribution of additional shifts.
- (e) It is the responsibility of all employees to work the shifts on the posted schedule save and except for absences due to illness. A request for a change in the posted time schedule must be submitted to and approved by the Employer prior to the change. It is understood that such change initiated by the employee and approved by the Employer shall not result in additional premium payment. Shifts changed after the schedule is posted will be noted on the schedule.
- (f) For purposes of equitable distribution of shifts, a part-time employee on an approved leave of absence will be considered to have worked the number of shifts that she/he had averaged over the preceding 4 week posted schedule.
- (g) PART TIME SCHEDULING PROVISIONS

 If a part-time employee accepts a temporary full-time position, she/he shall retain her/his status as a part-time employee and will continue to receive percent in lieu of benefits (Article 20.05) and percent in lieu of vacation (Article 19.01 (b)) through the period of temporary employment.
- (h) Casual employees will not be scheduled on the posted work schedule unless regular part-time employees are unavailable.
- F.08 Part time employees shall be scheduled one weekend off per month, if the employee so requests. Such weekends off shall not be construed as refusals or indications of unavailability. Such requests for weekends off shall be made in writing no later than 2 weeks before the schedule is posted. Every reasonable effort shall be made by the hospital to approve such requests, however seniority shall be the governing factor where there are more requests than the immediate supervisor can approve.

ARTICLE G - PREMIUM PAYMENTS AND TRANSPORTATION/MEAL ALLOWANCE

Re: Article 17.08

G.01 <u>TIME OFF BETWEEN SHIFTS</u>

Failure to provide nineteen and one-half (19.5) hours between the commencement of an employee's scheduled shift and the commencement of such employee's next scheduled shift shall result in payment of one and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular straight time hourly rate for only those hours which reduce the nineteen and one-half (19.5) hour period. Where the nineteen and one-half (19.5) hour period is reduced as a result of an approved change of shift(s) requested by the employee(s), such premium pay shall not apply.

Re: 17.06

G.02 TRANSPORTATION ALLOWANCE (FULL-TIME & PART-TIME)

When an employee is required to travel to the Hospital, or to return to his home, as a result of being called back to work outside of his regularly scheduled hours, the Hospital will pay transportation costs either by taxi or by his own vehicle at the approved Hospital rate, but no less than thirty cents (30 cents) per kilometre to a maximum of twenty five (\$25.) dollars or such greater amount that the Hospital may in its discretion determine for each trip. The employee will provide to the Hospital satisfactory proof of payment of such taxi fare.

ARTICLE H - PAID HOLIDAYS (FULL TIME & PART TIME)

Re: Article 18.01

H.01 (a) An employee upon completion of twenty (20) working days in the Hospital shall, subject to the provision of this Article, be paid an amount equivalent to one days pay at her regular straight time rate for the following holidays:

New Year's Day
Heritage Day (Third Monday in February)
Good Friday
Easter Monday
Victoria Day
Canada Day

Civic Holiday
Labour Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day

(b) In addition to the above, an employee will be entitled to a twelfth (12) paid holiday, such twelfth paid holiday shall be a non-premium holiday, and scheduled by mutual agreement during the calendar year. (c) Should the Hospital be required to observe an additional paid holiday as a result of legislation, it is understood that one of the existing holidays recognized by the Hospital shall be established as the legislated holiday after discussion with the Union, so that the Hospital's obligation to provide the number of paid holidays as noted above remains unchanged.

H.02 FULL-TIME ONLY

However, an employee shall not be entitled to be so paid:

- If she does not work on such holidays when she is required or scheduled to do so without certification of sickness
- (b) If she is absent on the scheduled working day immediately preceding and succeeding such a holiday without certification of sickness. Notwithstanding the foregoing, she shall be entitled to be paid if such absence is due to scheduled vacation.
- (c) If such holiday occurs while she is on leave of absence.

H.03 FULL-TIME ONLY

When a holiday falls on an employee's scheduled day off, the employee will be entitled to another day off with pay. Such time may be scheduled within three (3) pay periods of the holiday or if not taken within three (3) pay periods such employee shall be entitled to be paid for the day at their regular rate of pay.

H.04 PAID HOLIDAYS (FULL-TIME ONLY)

Where an employee is entitled to a lieu day off with pay, such time off must be taken by March 31 of the following calendar year in which it was earned, or the employee shall be paid for the lieu day at their regular rate of pay.

Subject to the scheduling of requests for vacation received prior to February 1, requests for time off under this article shall be considered on a first come first served basis. Such requests shall be made in writing as far in advance as possible except in extenuating circumstances. A response in writing to such request will be provided within a maximum of fourteen (14) calendar days.

It is agreed that lieu days will not be taken before they are earned.

H.05 FULL-TIME & PART-TIME

Coverage for Christmas Eve and Christmas Day, and New Year's Eve and New Year's Day shall be such that, where operational requirements permit, an employee shall not be required to work consecutive Christmas Eves and Days from year to year nor required to work consecutive New Year's Eves and Days from year to year. Christmas Eve and New Years Eve shall include all shifts commencing from 1530 hours, or any variation thereof.

<u>ARTICLE I – VACATION</u>

RE: Article 19

VACATION (FULL-TIME ONLY)

I.01 (a) Vacation accrual rates are in accordance with Article 19.01 and vacation is accrued for each completed month of service on the basis of entitlement as set out below, unless otherwise indicated

elsewhere in the collective agreement.

2 week entitlement	.84 days per month
	6.25 hours per month
3 week entitlement	1.25 days per month
	9.38 hours per month
4 week entitlement	1.67 days per month
	12.5 hours per month
5 week entitlement	2.09 days per month
	15.63 hours per month
6 week entitlement	2.5 days per month
	18.75 hours per month
7 week entitlement	2.9 days per month
	21.875 hours per month

Note: Days refer to 7.5 hours. Days and hours relative to weeks of entitlement are rounded to the nearest decimal point.

- (b) When an employee reaches her anniversary date of service, which requires an increase to her annual vacation entitlement, an additional five (5) days vacation will be credited to her vacation bank. As well, her vacation accrual rate will increase in accordance with her entitlement.
- (c) Employees may not take more vacation than they have accrued to their credit.
- (d) An employee's vacation credits may not normally be accrued in excess of their annual entitlement at any one time except by written authorization of the employee's manager.
- (e) At the time of approving such carry-over of vacation entitlement, the immediate supervisor and the employee together shall determine the date by which vacation credits shall be taken to reduce the vacation bank to one years entitlement or less.

(f) Vacations will be scheduled at times mutually convenient to the Hospital and the employee. Vacation requests for the period May, 01 of the current year until April 30, of the following year shall be submitted in writing no later than February 01, of the current year. All vacation requests received by February 01 are ranked in order of seniority. When a conflict arises, the senior employee denied vacation is given the list of available dates in order to determine an alternate vacation selection. The alternate request must be returned in 24 hours. The manager will adjust the list of alternate dates and process continues until all employees in conflict have had the opportunity to make alternate choices. All vacation requested, granted and denied prior to February 01 shall be posted as soon as possible and in any event no later than March 31.

Where the employer determines that vacation in prime time becomes available after the vacation schedule is posted, the immediate supervisor will offer the time in order of seniority to employees who requested and were denied these days prior to February 1st. Employees may not cancel vacation to exercise this option. If all employees decline the option to take vacation during the time offered, the process will revert to first come, first served basis.

(g) The maximum number of vacation days that may be requested through the process described in I.01 (f), by any employee during prime vacation time will be fifteen (15). Prime time shall include the March school break (as defined by the Limestone District Board of Education), the period December 25th to January 1st inclusive, and the summer period June 15th to September 15th.

It is understood that during the March break and summer prime time period employees will take no more than five (5) days of their annual vacation entitlement as single days. Notwithstanding the above, any additional available single days shall not be unreasonably denied.

(h) <u>Vacation Scheduling – Full-time</u>

If subsequent to the March 31 posting in Article I.01 (f) there are full-time employees with 10 or more years seniority who have requested but not been granted at least five (5) consecutive vacation days during the summer prime time period, the steward and the manager in the department(s) in which such employees work will meet in an effort to identify whether there are feasible alternatives through which such employees can be scheduled for additional vacation time during this period.

(i) Vacation requests made subsequent to I.01 (f), shall be granted on a first come first served basis. The immediate supervisor shall respond to these requests, in writing, within fourteen (14) days. In addition, vacation granted subsequent to February 1 will be posted as it is granted.

- (j) Employees may request their vacation balance from their manager or designate and the manager or designate will provide a timely response.
- (k) Approved vacation will not be cancelled by the Employer except where other alternatives to fill staffing needs have been exhausted; or by the Employee except in extenuating circumstances. Not withstanding the above, an employee may cancel two weeks prior to the posting of the schedule providing no other employee had been denied that vacation.

I.02 (a) VACATION (PART-TIME ONLY)

Part-time employees will have three (3), four (4), five (5), six (6), or seven (7) weeks prepaid vacation based on years of service and in accordance with the vacation entitlement of full time employees.

- (b) A week of prepaid vacation will be defined as seven (7) consecutive days.
- (c) For the purpose of scheduling, the same principles outlined for the full-time will be applied to part-time. Granting vacation will be based on combined seniority.
- (d) Part-time employees who accept a temporary full-time position during prime time in the summer will not be eligible for prepaid vacation during that time.
- (e) All part-time employees shall receive vacation pay to be added to the employee's regular bi-weekly pay on the following basis:
 - i) first three (3) years of service six (6) percent of gross earnings;
 - ii) employees who have completed three (3) years but less than thirteen (13) years of service eight (8) percent of gross earnings;
 - iii) employees who have completed thirteen (13) years but less than twenty-two (22) years of service ten (10) percent of gross earnings;
 - iv) employees who have completed twenty-two (22) years but less than twenty-eight (28) years of service twelve (12) percent of gross earnings;
 - v) employees who have completed twenty-eight (28) years or more years of service fourteen (14) percent of gross earnings.

ARTICLE J - HEALTH & WELFARE BENEFITS (FULL-TIME ONLY)

Re: Article 20 - HOOPP

J.01 Enrolment in HOOPP is a condition of employment for all eligible employees subject to the plan's terms and conditions.

ARTICLE K - MISCELLANEOUS

- K.01 The cost of printing this Agreement in booklet form in numbers sufficient for distribution to each party, shall be borne equally by each party to the Agreement.
- K.02 The Hospital agrees to continue the present practice where applicable to provide and launder laboratory coats and/or other protective clothing and equipment.

K.03 JOB DESCRIPTIONS

Whenever a job description is revised or a new one created, the Hospital shall provide a copy of the job description to the Union.

K.04 PAGERS

When the hospital requires an employee to remain on standby, such an employee will be provided with a pager. Such pagers will cover a radius necessary to address the acceptable response time required of an employee placed on standby. When paging an employee, the Hospital will indicate the urgency of the call.

- K.05 (a) No person shall hold meetings, collect Union dues or assessments, or solicit membership in the Union on the employer's property unless such activity is specifically permitted elsewhere in this Agreement or the Hospital grants permission in writing.
 - (b) No persons shall sell or distribute books, pamphlets or any mechanically reproduced material of any description on the property of the employer that is unreasonable or inappropriate.
- K.06 The Hospital agrees to continue to provide centrally located bulletin board(s) for use by all bargaining units at the Hospital

The Hospital also agrees to provide an additional ten (10) bulletin boards (measuring 18 X 24 inches) and such boards will be situated as mutually agreed between the Hospital and the Union. All notices to be posted shall be first approved by the Hospital.

K.07 <u>SAFETY ENGINEERED MEDICAL DEVICES (SEMD's)</u>

In consultation with the Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee the Hospital will continue to evaluate and introduce SEMD's in a timely fashion.

ARTICLE L - COMPENSATION

Re: Article	25						
L.01	The salaries for employees are set forth in Schedule 'A' and shall remain in effect for the term of this Agreement.						
L.02		Employees in the bargaining unit are paid every two weeks and the hourly rates are provided in Schedule 'A'.					
L.03	Salary increases for em	Salary increases for employees shall be effective on the anniversary date.					
ARTICLE N	M - PROFESSIONAL ASS	<u>OCIATION</u>					
M.01	the Regulated Health	Professions Act, th ployer for those emplo	belong to a College under ere will be no additional yees to also belong to their				
Signed at h	Kingston, Ontario the	day of	, 2007.				
_	ONTARIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES UNION	KINGSTON	GENERAL HOSPITAL				

BETWEEN

KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL AND

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION, LOCAL 444

In addition to the salaries prescribed in Schedule "A" the Hospital agrees to continue to pay any existing Education Bonus to the employees who currently receive such bonus as set forth hereunder.

Licentiate of the Canadian Society of Laboratory Technologists \$100.00 monthly
Advanced Registered Technologist \$60.00 monthly
Baccalaureate Degree of Science \$25.00 monthly

Newly hired employees or current employees who do not receive an Education Bonus will not be entitled to any form of Educational Bonus.

Dated at Kingston this	_ day of	2007.
FOR THE UNION		FOR THE HOSPITAL
	_	
	_	

BETWEEN

KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL

AND

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEE'S UNION, Local 444

In recognition that employees may be assigned to sites other than Kingston General Hospital, the parties agree that:

- 1. Employees shall have a designated home site, which shall be their normal expected place of work.
- 2. Transportation will be provided in a manner determined by the hospital for employees required to travel to other sites during the course of their shift.
- 3. The mileage will be paid at the corporate rate, when using one's own vehicle.
- 4. Employees will suffer no unreasonable expenses or loss of pay for travel time when required to travel to sites other than their home site.
- 5. Where employees are to transport items that cannot be easily accommodated in the employee's own vehicle, the employer will provide the means of transportation for the items.
- 6. Kingston General Hospital will remain responsible for its health and safety obligations to staff that work in a multi site facility in accordance with the Health and Safety Act.
- 7. The manner of handling changes in designated home sites shall be subject to agreement with the Union.

This is an interim agreement intended to address Multi Site Issues, Article 27.					
Dated at KINGSTON this day of	, 2007.				
FOR THE UNION	FOR THE HOSPITAL				

BETWEEN

KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL AND

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION, LOCAL 444

The	parties	ao	ree:

- (a) The Hospital can create an appropriate number of full time temporary opportunities during prime time as defined in Article I.01 (g).
- (b) In addition regular part time employees can be regularly employed for four (4) shifts per week during prime time on a voluntary basis.

Dated at Kingston this	_ day of	2007.	
FOR THE UNION		FOR THE HOSPITAL	
	_		

BETWEEN

KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL AND ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION, LOCAL 444

Re: Part Time Master Schedules

The parties agree to meet and discuss scheduling regular part-time employees on master rotations. The discussion of objectives will occur at OPSEU Labour Management meetings.

Dated at Kingston this	_ day of	2007.	
FOR THE UNION		FOR THE HOSPITAL	
	_		
	_		
	<u></u>		

BETWEEN

KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL AND

ONTARIO PUBLIC SERVICE EMPLOYEES UNION, LOCAL 444

Re: Scheduling Committee (sub committee of the Labour Management Committee)

The parties agree to establish a joint scheduling committee, consisting of equal representation. The parties will agree to meet at the call of each other.

The terms of reference shall be developed by mutual agreement. The committee shall be implemented prior to October 01, 2006.

Either party may discontinue this agreement with ninety (90) calendar days notice to the other party.

Dated at Kingston this	_ day of	2007.	
FOR THE UNION		FOR THE HOSPITAL	
	_		
	_		
			-